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Board of Trnsti:es 

Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C. 
Cerlifit:d Public Accow1tants 

S402 Holl.y Rd, Suite 102 
Corpus Christi, Texa.s 7841. 1 

Ortice (361 )980~0482 Fax (361)980-1002 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Santa Maria Independent School District 

P.O. J1ox 448 
Santa Maria, Texas 78592 

Report on the .Financial Statements 

Opi11io11s 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remai1Jing fund information of Santa Maria Independent School District (the "District"), as of and for the 
year ended August 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

ln our opinion
1 

the financial statements reforred to above presellt fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each 1mtjor fund, a11d the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the District, as of Aug~1st 31 , 2024, and the respective changes in financial position for 
the year lhen ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America . 

.Basis for Opi11iom,' 

We conducted our n.udit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in thi: United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standard~. issued by the Comptrol.ler General of the Unit1.:d States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. W c arc required to be independent of the Santa Maria Independent 
School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter - Cfla1t1?e in Acco11nli11g Principle 

As discussed in Note A to the basic financial stfltetnents, during the year ended August 31, 2024, the District 
implemented Governmental Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error 
Corrections - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62 . Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
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Re~po11sibl/ities ofMarmgementfur the Fi,umclal Statement:,· 

Managermmt is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financiitl statements iH 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the lJn.ited States of Ainl;!tica, and for the 
design, implementation, and m11intcnancc of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair pn:sc11tation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Santa Marin Independent School 
District' s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement due date, 
including any currently known infonnation that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditors' Re!ipo,r.slbilily for tlte A 11dit of the F'ina11cial Stfltement,v 

Our objectives ore to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, nnd to issue an auditor' s report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatomeflt when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or tho override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggreg,ite, they would influence the judgmtmt made by a reasonable user based 011 the financial statements. 

In perfonning an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing slandHnls and Guvermnent 
Auditing Stun.dmd\', we: 

• Exercise profossional judgment and maintain profossional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• ldentify and assess lhc risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whcthl;!t due 

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on n test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements, 

• Obtain an understanding of .internal control relevant to tl1e audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the piirpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District' s internal control. Accordingly, no s1Lch opinion is 
expressed, 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting po.I ici,~s used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentatfon of the 
financia 1 statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the District ' s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required lo communicate with those charged with governance regarding, an,ong oth1;:r matters, the 
planned scope nnd timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related tna.tters 
that we identified during the audit. 
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Required S11ppleme11tary l1,furmtttio11 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of 
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infomiation, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential pa1t of financial reporting fur placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, OJ' historical context. 

We have applied certain limited procedures to tho required supplementary infort11ation in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing th~ in Fom1atio11 and comparing the tnforrnation for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, rmd other knowladgc we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial staternunts. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

S1,pplcmen/ary J11formtlllu11 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Distrids basic financial statements. The accompanying combining statements, required TEA 
schedule:s, and the Schedule of Expe11dill1res of Federal Awards, as required by audit requirements of Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Award\· (Uniform Guidance), ate presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of Lhe basic financial slaternonts. Such lntbnnation is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 1111derlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial st.1lemcnts. The information has hccn suqjccted to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such infornrntion directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare lhe basic financial statements or to tho basic financial statements thems1;.1lvcs, ~nd 
other additional proc1;.1dures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, lhe combining statements, required TEA schedules, and the Schedule of 
Expcndin1rcs of Federal Awards arc fairly stated., in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Re1>orti11g Required by Govertmumt A1Lditi11g Stalldards 

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report January 27, 2025, on 
our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and o.n our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions oflaws, rcgLLlations, contracts, and grant agreements and other mattets. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial repo1ii11g and 
compliance and the results of th:H testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of intenrnl 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfom1ed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Stcmdard~ in considering District's internal control over finnncinl 
reporting and compliance. 

,,€,,.,/£~ qL ~ ?.Cl 
Corpus Christi, Texas 
.January 27, 2025 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

fn this section of the Anmml Financial and Compliance Report, we, the managers of S,rnt.a Maria 
r ndcpendent School District, discuss and analyze the District's financial performance for the fiscal year 
ended August 31 , 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the independent 1n1ditors' repo1t on page 1, and 
the District's B,isic Financial Statements, which begin on page 13. 

FINANCIAL IDGHLIGIITS 

• The District's total combined net positions were $5,443,660 and $4,943,321, for fiscal years 
ending August 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

• TI1c District's expenses were $13,797,002, which is $436,263 more than the 2023 amount of 
$13,360,739. 

• The General Fund reported a fund balance of $2,816,172 and $3,397, 1 OS for fiscal years ending 
Au1:,'l.1st 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

• The Debt Service Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $537,815, which reprcscnt'3 an 
increase of $518, I 31 from the prior year. 

• Revenues from governmental activities were $14,151;975 which represents a $611,815 i11cn::ase 
from the prior year. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

This annual report consists of three parts-management 1s discussion and analysis (this section), 
the basic financial statements, and requited supplementary information. The basic financial 
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District: 

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long­
term and short-term information about the Di$trict's overall financial status. 

• The remaining statements a.refimtlfinancial statements that focus on individual parts of the 
government, repo1ting the District' s operations in more detail than the govenunent~wide 
statements. 

• The governmental.funds statements tell how general government services were financed in 
the short term as well as what remains for futw:e spending. 

• Proprieta,y fimd statements offer short- and long-term financial infonnation about the 
activities the government operates like businesses. 

• Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which 
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources 
in question belong. 

• Notes to the.financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential 
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and iund financial 
statements. 

• Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, 
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the 
district's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. 
immediately following the required supplementary jnfonnation on pensions ure the two 
budgetary schedules on the general f\.md and major special revenue fund. The combining 
statements in connection to nonmajor governmental funds and fiduciary funds are then 
presented. 
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The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the infonnation in the financial 
staternent:s and provide data that are more detailed. The statements are followed by a section of 
required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the 
financial statements. 

Figure A-1 summarizes the 01~jor featmes of the District's financial statements, including the 
portion of the Di.strict government they cover and the types of information they contain. The 
remainder of this overview section of management's discussion and analysis explains the 
stn1cture and contents of each of the statements. 

Figure A-1 Major Features of the District's Government-wide 
and I•'und Finandal Statements ___ ....:..:..:::..:::.;,..::.....; 

[.yJUl of Statements !Govern01ent-whlq [Governmental Fund~ 

someone 

Required Finn_,..nc...,_. i....,ol'---­
Statr.1111mf,1· 

df£nw1tin() has/,r 
f!IJ(j nU~l.!,_\'ZllY!nlt!/1/ 

[Wl§. 

Entire district 
Government ( except) 
fiduciary fw1ds) 
nnc.1 the district's 

component units 

The activities of the 
districl lhitl- 11re not 
proprietHry or 
fiduciary 

Activities of 
District similar 
to private 
business; self 

insurance 

lnstanct:s in 
which tho di~trict 
is the trustee or 
custodian for 

else's resources 

Stuleme.nt of Balance S/Jl!et Statement of S/atr.ment of 
N!!.(flW.f.t/Jw .................................. .. ................ ........ 11r.rn,;,.tW1m ...... Jl41cd.ia.t.1.P.tP.!~~,(i.<m 
Statement of S1a1<m1e.11t rif revenues, Statement of Stcitemelll <!/" 

Aotivitics e.~p1:mdili1i,:s & changC!.s rev, exp,& ittjiducia,y 

Accrual accot1nUng 
tmd economic 
resources focus 

injimd bal,maes changes in net posi/iu11 
ncl rnt~li.un 

Statement of cash flows Stuli=ment of 
flows 

Moditicd accrnel 
accounting and 
current financiul 

Accnrnl Hccounting Accrual accounting 
nnd ecoJ\Omic economic resources 
fo1,;us focus 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The govemment~wide financial 
statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities ( on pages 13 and 
14). These provide information about the activities of the Disttict as a whole and present u longer­
term view of the District's property and debt obligations and other financial matters. They retlect 
the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar to the financial reports of a business 
enterprise. 

Fund linancial statements (stmiing on page 15) report the District's operations in more detail than 
the government-wide statements by providing inforn,ation about the District's most significant 
funds. For governmental activities, these statements tell how services were financed in the short 
tem1 as well as what re.sources remain for future spending. They reflect the flow of current 
financial resonrces, and supply the basis for tax levies and the appropriations budget. For 
proprietary activities, fund financial statements tell how goods or services of the District were 
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sold to departments within the District or to external cusLomers and how the sales revenues 
covered the expenses of the goods or services. The remaining statements, fiduciary statements, 
provide financial information abo1.1t activities for which the District acts solely as a trnstee or 
custodian for the benefit of those outside of the district. 

The notes to the financial statements (starting on page 22) provide narrative explanations or 
additional datu needed for fol] disclosure in the government-wide statements or the fund financial 
statements. 

The combining statements for nonmajor funds contain even more information about the DistricL's 
individual funds . These are not required by TEA. The section labeled Other Schedules contain 
data used by monitoring or regu]atory agencies for assurance that the District is using funds 
supplied in compliance with the terms of grants. 

Reporting the District as a Whole 

The Statente11t of Net Position a11d t/ie Statement of Activities 

The analysis of the District's overall financial condition and operations begins on page 13. Its 
primary purpose is to show whethe;ir the District is better off or worse off as a result of the year's 
activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all the District's assets and liabilities at the end 
of the year while the Statement of Activities includes all the revenues and expenses generated by 
the Distrids operations during the year. These apply the accrual basis of accounting which is the 
basis used by private sector companies. 

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received o:r pai<l. The District's revenues are divided into those provided by outside parties who 
share the costs of some programs, such as tuition received from sludents from outside the district 
and grants provided by the U.S. Department of Education to assist children with disabilities of 
from disadvaittaged backgrounds (program revenues), and revenues provided by the taxpayers or 
by TEA in equalization funding processes (general revetrnes). All the District's assets are repo1ied 
whether they serve th.e current year or future years. Liabilities are considered regardless of 
whether they must be paid in the current or f'nture years. 

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them. The District's net 
position (the difference between ussds and liabilities) provide one measure of the Distrids 
financial health, or financial position. Over ti.me, increases or decreases in the District's net 
position are one indica1l1r of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully 
assess the overall health of the Distl'ict, however, you should consider nonfinancial factors as 
well, such as changes in the District's average daily attendance or its propc1ty tax base and the 
condition of the Disuict's facilities. 
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In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we present the Distdct's one 
kind of activity: 

Governmental acti vitics- Most of the District's basic services arc rcpo1ted here, including the 
instruction, counseling, co-curricular activities, food services, transportation, maintenance, 
community services, and general administration. Property taxes, tuition, foes, and state and 
federal grants finance most of these activities. 

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds 

Funt/ Fi11ancial Statements 

The fund financial statements begin on page 15 and provide detailed infoTTllation about the most 
significant funds- not the District as a whole. Laws and contracts require the District to establish 
some funds, such as grants received under the No Child Left Behind Act from the U.S. 
Department of Education. The District's administration establishes many other funds to help it 
control and manage money for particular pmposes (like campus activities). The District's 
govermnental funds use the following accounting approach: • 

Governmental funds-Most of the District's basic services are reported in governmental funds. 
These use modified ,\ccrual accounting (a method that measures the receipt and disbursement 
of cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to ca_sh) and report balances 
that are available for future spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed 
short-term view of the District's general operations and the basic services it provides. We 
describe the differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation schedules 
following each of the fund financial statements. 

The District us Trustee 

Reporting t/,e Di:,trict's Fid11ciary Responsibilitie.,· 

• The District is the trustee! or fiduciary, for money raised by student activities and alumnae 
scholarship programs. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in separate 
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position on page 20. We exclude these resources from the 
District's other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance 
its operations. The District is only responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these 
funds are used for their intended purposes. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The District implemented GASB Statement #34 in a prior year. Our analysis focuses on the net 
position (Table I) and changes in net position (Table II) of the District's governmental-type 
activities between cun·ent and prior year. 

Net position of the District's governmental activities increased from $4~943,321 to $5,443,660 
due, in part, to revenues exceeding expenditures. Unrestrictt:d net position - the pait of net 
position that can be used to finance day-to-day operalions without constraints established by debt 
covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements - was ($3,28 J ,965) at August 31, 
2024 which represents a $229;180 increase from prior year. The District's revenues exceeded the 
expenditures by $354;973. The District paid bonds and other long~term debt in the amount of 
$542,277. Fmthermore, acquired capital assets, including completed capital projects, amounted 
to a net after disposals, before depreciation, of $1,139,656. The District recorded depreciation in 
the amount of $889,862. In addition, accumulated depreciation was $10,501;012 as of August 
31, 2024. (See note Don page 35) 

Total Revt.mue increased by $611,815 in fiscal year 2024. Miscellaneous Revenues accounted 
for a majority of the increase. Total Expenditures increased by $436,263 during the year. General 
Administration accounted for a majority of the increase. 

The District has no business-type activities. 
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Table I 
SANTA MARTA INDEPENDENT 

SCHOOL DlSTRlCT 
Govcrrunenlal Activities 

ASSETS 2024 2023 Chanic 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,775,645 $ 1,262,412 $ 513,233 

Currem Investments 565,531 1,152,792 (587,261) 

Property Taxes Receivable (Delinquent) 225,903 210,066 15,837 

AJlowance for Uncollectiblc Taxes (33,885) (31,510) (2,375) 
Due from Ol.her Governments 1,264,965 1,781.622 (516,657) 
Due from Fiduciary funds 230.844 144 230,700 

Other Receivables, net I 35,110 161,889 (26,779) 

Inventories 4,21!1 13,782 (9,501) 

Prepayments 18.816 18,836 

Totul Current Assets: 4,187,230 4,551,197 (363,967) 

Capitol Assets: 
Land 247,824 247,824 

Buildings, Not 19,281,762 19,736,120 (454,358) 

Furniture and Equipment, Net 1,132,348 737,180 395,168 
Right-tu-Use Leased Asset, Net 16,643 29,126 (12,483) 

Construction in Progress 367,078 68,416 298,662 

Totnl Noncurrent Assets 21,045,655 20.818,666 226,989 

Total Assets $ 25,232,885 $ :is,369,1!63 $ (1 36,978) 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Chnrge for Refunding 8,721 10,175 ( 1;454) 

Deferred Outflow Related to TRS Pension 1,232,796 l.294,012 (61,216) 

Deferred Outflow Related to TRS OPEB 970,878 1,200,110 (229,232) 

Total DefoITcd Outt1ows of Resources 2,212,395 2,504,297 (291 ,902) 

LlAlllL!TIES 
Accounts Payable $ 70,589 $ 27,740 $ 42,849 

lnterest Payable 17,028 16,207 821 

Accrued Wages Payable 213,660 174,412 39,248 

Due to Fiduciary Funds 10,573 10,573 

Due to Other Governments 2,195 54,715 (52,520) 

Accrued Expenses 4,528 3,727 801 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Due Within One Year 598,410 537,277 61,133 
Due in More Than One Year 12,792,130 13,231 ,711 (439,581 ) 

Net Pension Liability (District's Share) 3,111 ,697 2,953,462 158,235 
Net OPEB Liability (District's Share) 1,575,630 1,926,532 (350,902) 

Total Liabillties 18,396,440 18,936,356 (539,916) 

DEFER.RED lNFLOW OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflow Realted to TRS Pension 346,349 392,956 (46,607) 

Deferred Inflow Rcalted to TRS Ol>E0 3,258,832 3,601,528 (342,696) 

Total Deferred in.flows of Resources 3,605,181 3,994,484 (389,303~ 

NET POSITION 
Net [nvestmcnt in Cnpitnl Assets 7,663,837 7,059,854 603,983 
Restricted for Federal and State Programs 314,761 343,165 (28,404) 

Restricted for Debi Service 537,815 19,684 518,131 

Restricted for C1:1pital Projects 209,212 573,403 (364,191) 

Unrestricted (3,281,96:'i~ (3,052,785) (229,180) 
Totnl Net Position $ 5,443,660 $ 4,943,321 $ 500,339 
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T11hle IT 
SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CHANGES IN POSITION 

Governmental Govcrnmcnt11I 
Activities Activities 

2024 2023 Change 

Revenues: 
Program Rcv\'.nucs: 

Charges for Services $ 31,823 $ 269,391 $ (237,568) 

Operating Grants and Contributions 3,433,362 4,060,915 (627,553) 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 2,258,396 1,322,917 935,479 

Grants and Contributions not Restricted 7,165,889 7,644,520 (478,631) 

Investment Earnings 85,095 85,907 (812) 
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,177,410 156,510 1,020,900 

Total Revenue 14,151)75 13,540,160 611,815 

E1<penses: 
Instrnction 6,517,487 6,682,785 (165,298) 

Instructional Resources and Media Services 53,483 63,018 (9,535) 

Curriculum and Instructional Staff Development 170;599 208,253 (37,654) 

1nstructional Leadership 628,204 353,010 275,194 

School Leadership 492,787 517,958 (25,171) 

Guidance, Corn1seling, and Evaluation Services 244,388 243,138 1,250 

Social Work Services 52,043 51 ,528 515 

Health Services 127,627 129,193 (l,:S66) 

Student (Pupil) Transportation 358,092 407,344 (49,252) 

Food Services 779,923 672,206 I 07,717 

Extracurricular Activities 592,068 589,999 2,069 

General Administration 1,116,913 894,216 222,697 

Facilities Mnintennnce lllld Operations 1,305,169 1,311,726 (6,557) 

Security and Monitoring Services 412,769 359,543 53,226 

Data Proc.ei;sing Services 194,550 191,858 2,692 

Community Services 94,924 120,535 (25,611) 

Debt Survicc • Interest 011 Long Term D0bl 395,333 403,339 (8,006) 

Debt Service • Bond Issuance Costs and Fees 3,975 4,900 (925) 

Payments Related to Shared Services Arrangements 112,332 111,207 1,125 

Other Intergovernmental Charges 144 336 44,983 99,353 . 

Total Expenses 13,797,002 U,360,739 436,263 

Change in Net Position 354,973 179,421 175,552 

Net Position • Beginning as Previously Reported 4,943,321 4,763,900 179,421 

Adjustments and Restatements 145 366 145,366 

Net Position - Beginning as Restated and Adjusted 510881687 4,763,900 324,787 

Net Position - End ofYear $ 5,443,660 $ 4,94:1,321 $ 500,339 
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FIGURE 1 
Governmental Activites - Revenues by Source 
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FIGURE 2 
Governmental Act ivltes - Expenses by Source 

(in dollars) 
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As the District completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on 
page 15) reported a combined fund balance of $3,693,667, which represents a net decrease of 
($407,807) over last year's total of $4,101,474. The decrease is due, in part, to Capital Project 
ex.pendi tures. 

The District's General Fund balance of $2,816,172 reported on page 57 differs from the General 
Fund's budgetary fond balance of $3,397,105 reported in the budgetary comparison schedule, 
which is a difference of $580,933. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMJNISl'RA TION 

Capital As:,·ets 
At the end of 2024, the District had $31.5 million invested in a broad range of capit.11 a:ssets, including 
land, constrnction in progress, buildings, vehicles, and furniture & equipment. 

This year's major additions included: 

Land 
Construction In Progess 
Buildings & Improvements 
Furniture and Equipment 
Vehicles 
Right-to-use lease assets - equipment 

Totals at Historical Cost 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Capital Assets (Net) 

2024 

$ 247,824 
367,078 

27,994,661 
1,522.149 
1,352,543 

62,413 
31 ,546,667 

{10,501 ,012) 
$ 21 ,045,655 

2023 

$ 247,824 
68,416 

27,739,158 
1,160,259 
1,151,746 

62,413 
30,429,816 

(9,611,149) 
$ 20,818,666 

More detailed information about the Db1rict'::; capital assets is presented in Note D (page 35) to the 
financial statements. 

Debt 
At yeaNmd; the District had $13,226,711 in bonds and other long-term debt outstanding, which is a net 
decrease from the prior year by $542,277. 

More detailed information about the District's long-tenn liabilities is prest.mted in Note G (page 3 7) to the 
financial statements. 

ECONOMIC }~ACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RA TES 

The districts elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2024-
2025 budget tax rates. One significant consideration was the state of the economy. While the district 
experienced minimal population i:,rrowth, there is a strong possibility of in.creased oppmtunities with lhe 
construction or addition of a new solar panel form . Employment opportunities will have an impact on the 
local economy. 

The adopled budget for 2024-2025 is $9,135,311 which reflects an increase of $467,446 from the previous 
year. The tax rate for the year is set at 1.30420. The appraised value for the 2024-2025 budget is 
$363,563,715, an incrc:<1sf;l of ,ipprnximatc.ly $8,680,197. f II the 2024-2025 budget, the estimated revenue 
from General Operat.i11g fonds has decreased from $7,702,865 to $6,760,447. Additionally, the General 
Operating appropriation per student has dropped from $3,881 to $3,479. The refined daily attend.1nce for 
the 2024"2025 budget is expected to bo 506, representing a decrease from the prior year. 

CONTACTING THE DIST1UCT'S ~1INANCTAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the Distrlds finances and to show the Distriut's accountability for the money 
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additiooul financial information, contact the 
District's business offlcc, at Santa Maria Independent School District (956) 565-6308. 

12 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
S'l 'ATEMcNT OP NET POSITION 

i)ulu 

Conltol 
Codes 

ASSt:llS 
I 110 Cash and Cash Equivulc:11ts 
1120 Current Inve~lrnents 
1220 PropcrlV Tfu:es - Delinoucmt 
1230 Allow11ni.:e for Uncollcctiblc Taxes 
1240 Due lrorn Orhcr Governments 
1267 Due from Fiduciarv FundN 
1290 Other Rccciv11ble~. Net 
1300 lnvcntorks 
1410 Prcpavrncnts 

C!1p ital Assets: 
1510 Lnnd 
I 520 IJuildines. Net 
1530 Furniture 1111<.I fa1uiirn11:ml. Net 
1550 RiflhH,1-lJse Leased Assets. Net 
1S80 Construction in l'ro~css 

1000 Toto.I Assets 

IJEl7ERRED OlllFl,OWS OP H.£SOURCEB 
1701 Dcfcm:<l Charge fot· Refundh1iz 
1705 Di:rerrecl Outflow Related to TRS Pension 
1706 Defon·cd Outflow Rt:1111~..,1 to TRS OPEf-3 

1700 TotHl Deferred Outnows of Resources 

LJABIUllt,S 
2IJ0 Accounts 1-'avablc 
',l 140 Interest l'avablc 
2160 i\ccru1.:d Wiu~s Puvohle 
2177 Due to fiduciar\' Funds 
2180 Due to Other Governments 
2200 Accn10d ExPcnscs 

Noncurrcnt I ,iflhilities: 
250 I Due Within One Yeor: Loans. Note, LeL1Scs. etc. 

Due in More than One Year: 
2502 Bonds. Notes. Lo!llls. Lct1seli. c\L< 
2540 Not Pension J .iubi.litv ITTbtrkt's Shai;e) 
2545 Net OPER Liahilit v mistrict's Sharcl 

2000 Total Liahilities 

DtRRIUl> INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
2605 Deferred lnflow Relatc:d lo TRS Pensio.n 
2606 Ocfcircd Inilow Relnled to TRS OPEil 

2600 Total Pderrcd Inflows of tlesources 

Nt:rrosntoN 

AUGUST 31, 2024 

3200 Net lnvcstmont in Crmhul Assi:ts ~nd Rill.ht-to-Use u.11Sc A~scts 
Rostrictcd; 

3820 Restricted 1hr federal and State 1'ro1,rams 
3850 Rc,.-;;tricti:d for Debt Service 
3860 Restricted for Caoit~l Prokct~ 
3900 lJ nrestrictcd 
3000 Total Nel Po~itinn 

The notes to the financial .~iutenients are an integral part of this statcmunl. 
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Primary (~1vemment 

Governmental 
Activities 

~ 1.775.645 
565.531 
225,903 
(33.885) 

1.264.965 
230.844 
135.110 

4.281 
18,836 

247.!!24 
19.281.762 

1.132.348 
16.643 

367.078 

25,232,885 

8,721 
1.232.796 

970.878 

2,212.395 

70.589 
17.028 

213.M0 
10.573 
2.195 
4.528 

598,410 

12. 792. 130 
3, ll 1.697 
1.575.6~0 

I 8,396,44-0 

346.349 
3.258.832 

3,605,181 

7.663.1137 

314.761 
537.815 
200,212 

/3.2R1.965~ 

$ 5,443;660 



SANT A. M AlllA TNDEPENDENT SCHOOi . f>TSTRICT 
STATEMENT 01' ACTTVITlTIS 

FOR. THE Y.EAlU~NDFD AlJC,lJST 3 1, 2024 

Prugi on1 Rcvcnltcs 
Dnta 

Cunlrul 

Codt'-S 

l'l'im11ry Go,·ernmcnl: 

l I 

12 
I J 
21 
2:; 

3 I 
n 
3 "\ 

34 

35 
36 
~ I 
51 

52 
5J 

<',! 

72 

73 
•)3 

99 

(iOVERNM ENT/\L ACTIVlTTF.S; 

Instruction 
lnstrnctional Rc~o111·u:s and M cdia Setviccs 
C11rriculu111 and lnstrncl ional Sf.nff f)cvclnpmcnl 
foslruclional Leadership 
School Lcac!cr.;hip 
Guid:mt-c. Counseling, arid Evaluation Setviccs 
Social Wurk Services 
llealth Services 
Student (Pup il) Trnn~portalio11 
F nnd Scrvit:es 
Ext.mcurricutar Activities 
Ocneral Adminislrntion 
Facililics M 01inlen~n~ anti Opcmtions 
Security arid M onitoriug Services 
Data Processing ScrvilL'l:l 
Community Services 
Uchl Service - l11le1est on Long-Term l>cbl 
Debt Service• Bond Js~1111ncc Cn~I anti rees 
Payments Rclntcd lo Sh11rl!II Services Arrnngcmcnts 
()I.her lntt,-r~vernme11tal Charµ 

(TP I TOTJ\L l'lUMARY CiOVf',RNMENT : $ 

Fxpcnscs 

6,5 17,487 $ 

53.483 
]70,.599 

62R,204 
492,787 
244,388 

57.,0'13 
J),7,627 
358,092 

779,923 
59),068 

1, 116,91J 
1,305, l69 

417.,769 
194,550 
94.924 

395,333 
3.')75 

112,332 
144.3% 

Charges for 

Services 

18,922 $ 

'.l,682 
9,2 19 

13,797,002 $ 31,823 $ 

" 
Opernline 
Grn,1ts Rnd 

Contrib11t1om 

1,616,226 

50, 140 
150,846 
118 1,923 

14,02.3 

69,438 
56,'1.50 
42,'.l'.lR 

660,67'/ 

2.'17,8'1'.l 

43,458 

'.l,433,362 

$ 

~'.XH!.1:l/T R-1 

Net (F:,q,~nfl") 
rlcvcnue and 

Changes 111 Nd 
Pusiliun 

<i 
Primary Ciciv. 

Governmc11lal 
/\cl ivil ie~ 

(4,882,339) 

(3,3•!3) 
(19,753) 

(1 46,281) 
('171.!,7M) 
(174,')50) 

4,407 
(85,289) 

(358.092) 
(I I S,564) 
(582,849) 

(J ,116,CJD) 
( t,:,05. 169) 

( 164,926) 
( 194,550) 

(SI ,'166) 
(395,.m) 

(3,975) 
(l 12.332) 
( 144,'.l'.l6) 

(10,331.817) 
====== ==-·--- - -- - -------

Datu 
Co111n:1l 
Codes 

Gcneml Revenues: 
Taxes: 

MT l'roperty Taxe~. Leviccl for Gencrul l'11rpnses 
nT Propei-ty Taxes, Levied ror Oehl Service 
GC Grants and Contributiuns not Rest1i1;tecl 
IE Investment T111rnings 
Ml Miscclhuu.:mis Local and lntcm1cdiatc Rc:ve1111c 

T R Total Ucncral Revenues 

CN Change in Net Position 

NR Net Position - Be.ginning as l'rcviously Rcpo1'led 

I' A Adjustments and f{t,'!;Lfli c:ments 

Ncl Posilion - !1e~n11in1;as Restated 11nd Adjusl"'-1 

NE Net Position • Ending 

The notes to the financial slatcm~'!lts 11rc 1111 integral part l) f this s tatement. 
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1,079,9'11 
l , I 7R,455 

7, 165,8!!9 
85.095 

1., 177,410 

10.686,790 

354,973 

4,943,32 l 

145.366 

.'i,088,687 

L s.4<1J.660 



SANTA MARIA JNDEPENDENT SClKX>l, DISTRICT 
BAI-ANCE SHE~!' 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
AUGUST 31, 2024 

Oma j 0 
Control Ucncrnl 

Codes Flini.J 

ASSETS 

1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1.,713,751 $ 

1120 Investments - Current 541,689 

1220 Property Taxes - Delinquent 141,895 
1230 A !Iowan cc for Uncollectib le Taxes (21,284) 
1240 Due from Other Governments 678,428 
1260 Due fi-om Other Fu11d~ 279,254 
1290 Other Receivab les 134,221 
1300 Inventories 4,281 
1410 Prepayments 

1000 Total Assets $ 3,472,235 $ 

LlAlllLITIES 
21 )() A ccounts Payable $ 35,780 $ 

21(i0 Accrued Wages Payable 213,660 
2170 Due lo Other funds 281,484 
2180 Due to Other Governments 
2200 Accrued Expenditures 4,528 

2000 Total Liabilities 535,452 

DEFERRF.D INfl.OWS OF RESOURCES 
26()1 Unavailable Rcvcnuu - Property Taxes 120,611 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 120,611 

FUND DAT.ANCES 
Non spendable, Fund Baln11ce: 

3410 Inventories 4,281 
3430 Prepaid Items 

Restricted Fund Balance: 
3451) Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 203,129 
J470 Capital Projects 
3480 Retirement of Long-Tenn Debt 

3600 Unassigned fund Balance 2,608,762 

3000 Total Pund Balances 2,816,172 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 3,472,235 

The notes to the financial stalermmls ore an integral part of this statcrrnmt. 
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$ 

50 
Debt Scrv ice 

l'tn!~ 

518,411 $ 

84,008 
(12-,601) 

100,000 

689,818 $ 

- $ 

80,596 

80,5% 

71,407 

71,407 

537,815 

537,815 

689,818 $ 

EX! lll31T C-1 

Total 
Other (iovcrnmental 

hmds Fw1ds 

(456,517) $ 1,775,645 
23,842 565,531 

225,903 
(33,885) 

586,537 1,264,965 
204,096 583,150 

889 135,1 10 
4,28] 

18,836 18,836 

377,683 $ 4,539,736 

34,808 $ 70,588 
213,660 

1,000 363,0RO 
2,195 2,195 

4,528 

38,003 654,051. 

192,018 

l92,018 

4,281 
18,836 18,836 

111,632 314,761 
209,212 209,212 

537,815 
2,60R,762 

339,680 3,693,667 

377,683 $ 4,539,736 



SANTA MAfUA INI )l,T'ENDENT SO IOOL DISJ'RJCT 
RECONCILLATlON OF Tl IF. C.OVERNMENT AL FUNDS llA LANCE SHEET TO Tl JI i 

STATEMENT OF NFI" 1'0SITTON 
AUGIJST J1, 2024 

Tofal l<'und Balances - Government.JI f'unds 

·n1e District" uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities, such as sci f­
insunmcc and rrinting, to appropriate functions in other funds. The assets and .liabilities of 
the internal service fonds arc im:ludcd in governmental activities in the statement of nel 
position. The net effect of this consolidation is lo increase net position. 

i Capital assets used in governmenttil activities are not financial resources and therefore are not 
reported in govcrnn1e11tal funds. At the beginning (irthe year, the cost of lhese assets was 
$30,429,819 and the accumulated depreciation was ($9,611,153). In audition, long-tenn 
liabilities, including bonds payahle, arc not due and pay,1ble in the current period, and, 
therefore .m~ not reported as liabilities in !.he funds. The net effect of including the beginning 
balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debt in lhe governmental 
activities is to decrease nel position. 

3 Current ye.ir capital outlays and long-tenn debl principal payments are expenditures in the 
fund linancial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and 
reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect of 
including the 2024 capital outlays and debt. principal payments is to decrease net position. 

4 Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the District's proportionate share t>f 
the net pension liability required by GASB 68. The net position re.lated to TRS included a 
deferred resomce, outflow in the amount of$1,232,796, a deterred resource inflow in the 
amount of $346,349, and net pension liability in the amollnl of $3, 1 I 1,697. This re:::11ltcd in an 
incn.:ase (decrease) in net position. 

5 Included in the item::: related to debt is the recognition of the District's proportiom1le share of 
the net OPEB liability required by GASB 75. The net position related to Tl{S included a 
deferred resource outflow in the amount of$970,878, a defen-cd resource inflow in the 
amount of $3,258,832, and a net OPEil liability in the;: amount of $1 ,575,630. Th is rc~ulted in 
an increase (decrease) in net position. 

6 The 2024 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effccl oft:hc 
current year's <lcprcclation is to decrease nel position. 

7 Various other reclassifications anti eliminations are necessary lo conve1t from the modi lied 
accrual ha~is of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing 
unavailable revenue from property taxes as revenue, reclm;sifying the proceeds of bond sales 
as an increase in bonds payable, and recognizing 1he liabilities associated wilh inaturing long­
term debt and interest. The net etfoct ofthc:se reclassifications and recognitions is to increase 
net position. 

29 Net Pus.ition of Governmental Activities 

Thl' notes to lhc financial s hltcmcnls an: 11n inli:gml p,u1 or tliis statement. 
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EXI IJHIT C-2 

J,693,667 

7,043,647 

1,493,846 

(2,225,250) 

(3,863,584) 

(889,863) 

L91 ,197 

$ .'i,443,660 



$A NT/\ MA RIA LNOEl'ENIJGNT SCHOOL DLSTRllT 
STATFMENT OF REVl:.°"NUl..:'.S. ill<l'l•:NDfTlffiES, AND CIIANGhS IN FlJND BALJ\NCl..::S 

G<.>VERNMENT AL FUNI )S 
FOR Tl-IE YEAR 1.:,'NDEO A tJGlJST 31, 2024 

IJuta 

Conl rul 

Codes 

REVENUES; 

5700 Tot nl Luc.al and lntermrediatc Source.~ $ 

5800 Stntc PrnAJ·.im. lkvenues 

5900 Federal l'rogrnm llcvcnucs 

50:!.0 Totul Revenues 

F.XPENDITUI~: 

Current; 

0011 lns lmcliml 
0012 lustruetional llrsu11n;c.s and M L-<liu Servl<:e.~ 

0013 Curricuh1m and Jnst.nu.:tional Slnrf Development 

0021 lmtmcLim111J l.t.aJcrship 

0023 School Leadership 

0011 Guidance, Counseling and Evuluutinn s~rvices 

0032 Social Work Scrvi....:s 

00J3 Health Services 

0034 Studt:tlt (PUllil) Transportntion 

0035 Food Services 
00Jt, Jilctracurriculnr Act ivi1 it:s 
0041 Gcncrol Adrni11istl'aiio11 

0051 Fncililic.<; Maintenance and Operation~ 

0052 Sccurily 11ml M m1itnring Se,·vkes 
OM3 Dulll Prnccssing Serv ices 

006 1 Crnrnnunily Services 
Debt Sc1vicc: 

0071 Plindpa! nu l ,t111P,-T1:n11 Liabilities 

oon lnter~st 1111 I ;)11p;-Tem1 Liabilit ics 

007.1 nond Iss11ancc Cost and fee~ 
Capitnl Outllly: 

0081 l:'adli1ics Ac,1uisilio11 and Construction 
Tnlcrgc1vcn11ne11Lal: 

0()93 Payments to Fis1,al Ar,cnl/Memhcr Districts of SSA 

0099 Other lntcmovcrnrm:ntal Charji,t:.q 

6030 Tutal Exµenditurcs 

1100 Exe<.>ss (llcticicm,')' ) or"Rcvcuul!S Over {IJ11dcr) 
l:iq1 L'tll I it ures 

OTHER FlN/\NCINU SOURCES (US!:'.S): 

71) 13 RiJ?)Jt-to-Usc l.ctiSc: iind SBIT /1. Procee<ls 

7949 Other R~.so11rL'(,'S 

7080 T otnl Other Hmincing Snuru:.~ (IJ ses) 

1200 Ncl Chant,.: in Fund nalancx..~ 

O I 00 Fund Tlalance - September I (Bcgjnning), A8 Pr1:vinusly Reported 

1100 i\c\justmcnts nnd Rest atcmcnls 

Fund l:lalancc - Scple1i1bt:r I, il.~ Re..~tatcd and Adjusted 

3000 Fund B11lan~ - i\ui;usl J I (Ending) $ 

The notes to the financial slatcmcnls ure a11 uitegral pa1t of this slalcl.Tll.,nl.. 
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10 
General 

fund 

1,197,024 
7,003,075 

843,lnl 

? ,04'.l,?20 

4,977,202 
4, 1,1:'i 
6,622 

ISl,682 
445,646 
150,586 

R0,005 
475,361 
703.1159 
67.6,6.2R 

1,056,843 
I ,2 17,8H!! 

169,314 
I:M,612 
53,679 

49,95:l 
6,91'.l 

165,961 

112.332 
56,7:14 

10,725,965 

(l .6!!2,04:'i) 

200,7')7 
!,127,755 

1,3211.552 

(353,'191) 

3,397,105 

(227,440) 

3, 169,665 
2,816, 172 
= 

50 
Debt ~rvicc 

Fund 

$ 1,204, 1 ?7 

l.2M, (97 

454,999 
460,438 

3,975 

87,602 

1.007,01 4 

197.183 

197, JH3 

19,6811 

320,?48 

340,632 

$ 537,815 

Prior Ye,,, 

Capital 
Pn,j<'cl s Ftutd 

$ 

573,403 

(573,403) 

$ 
= .J t 



EXl-U.1:m C-3 

T ula! 
Other Gov~rnm~ntal 

Funds funds 

~ 10,286 $ 2.4 11.507 
1,517,589 8.520.664 
1.:1.78,2'16 2,122.067 

2,806,121 13,054.238 

1,615,876 6.593.078 
50,140 5'1.2R5 

150.846 157.468 
4111 ,923 663.605 

14.023 459.669 
(19,438 210.024 
56,1150 56.450 
-<12.:ns 122.343 

<175.361 
23.150 727.009 

626.628 
1-056.843 
I.). 17.888 

2'17.8113 417.157 
184.612 

43,458 97.137 

504.952 
467.351 

3.!Y/5 

'107,499 573.460 

112.'.l'.12 
144.336 

) ,202,984 14,935.963 

(396,116'.l) (UISl ,725) 
-

:wo.191 
1, 127.755 

J.328.55?. 

(396,863) (55'.I, 173) 

111 ,282 4,101.474 

625.261 \ tl:i,366 

7%,H:i 4,246,840 

$ '.l'.19,680 $ 3,693.667 
=-..:~ 
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SANTA MARJA LNDEl'ENDFNT SCHOOL OISTRJGr EXlllDJl C-4 
lfRCONCll JA TlON OF THE U<JVERNM ENT!\ I, FUNDS STAT EM I '.NT OF REVFNl.JES, EXl'I '.NI )l'l"UllES, 

AND CHANCl.:S JN !-'UNI> TlALANCES TO TIJE STATFMENT OF ACTIVlTU~, 
FOR THE YEAR ENDl:D A I Kll JST 31, 2()211 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

The District uses internal service funds to charge the costs or certain activities, such a$ self" 
insurance and printing, to appropriate ti.mdions in olher funds. The net income ( loss) of internal 
service funds are reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this consolidation is to 
increase net position. 

Current year capital outlays and long-t.erm debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund 
financial statements, but tbcy should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long­
term debt in the government-wide financial sl'atemcnts. The net effect of removing the 202'1 capital 
outlays and debt principal payments is to decrease net position. 

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it doe~ not require the use 
of cummt financial resources. The nel e11ecl o[ the current year's depreciation is to decrease nel 
position. 

Various other reclar;iMications and eliminations nrc necessary to convert from the modified accrual 
ba::ds of accounting to accrual basis or 1:1ccounting. These include ri;:cognizing unavailable revenue 
from prope.rty taxes as re;:vcnuc_, adjw;ting current year revenue to show the revenue earned from the 
cur.rent year's tax levy, reclassifying lhe proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities 
associated with m,1Luririg long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and 
reco1:,rnitions is to decrease net position. 

UASB 68 required that certain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource 
outflows. These contributions made after the measurement date of the plan caused the change in 
ending net position to increase by $223,581. Contributions made before the measurement date .ind 
during the previous fiscal year were also expended and recorded as a reduction in net pemion 
liability. This caused a decrease in the change in net position totaling $246,766. Finally, the 
proportionate share of the TRS pension expense on the plan as a whok: had to be recorded. The net 
pension expense (increa,;ed) decreased the change in net position by $149,659. The net result is an 
incrca:sc (decrease) in the change in ntit position. 

GASO 75 required that c1;rlain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as del'ened resource 
outflows. These contributions made after the measuremelll date of the plan i;ausccl the change in 
ending net position to increase by $59,S 16. Contributions made before the measurement date and 
during the previous foi;al year were also expended and recorded as a reduction in net OPEB 
liabilily. This c,'l.uscd a decreac;e in the change in net position totaling $64,787. Finally, the 
proportionate share of the TRS OPEB expen~t: on the plan as a whole had to be recorded. The net 
OPEB expense (increased) decreased the change in net position by ($469,637). The net result is an 
increase (dccr·case) in the change in net position. 

Change i11 Net Positio11 of Governmental Adivities 

Thu notes Lo the financial statcmants arc 11n in1egrnl pw1. uflhis statement. 
I? 

$ (553,l 73) 

1,493,846 

(889,863) 

12,641 

( 172,844) 

464,366 

354,973 



ASSETS 
C'..ash and Cash Equivalents 
Out~ from Other Funds 

Total Assets 

LlAHILlTlES 

SA NT A MA RIA INDE!'l '.NJJENT SCHOOL DISTJUCl' 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSJTlON 

F[T)l JCIARY FUN! )S 
AUGUST 31, 2024 

Payroll Oeduclions and Withholdinr:s Payable 
Due to Other Funds 

Total T.iah ilities 

NET POSITION 
Restricted for Other Purposes 

Total Net Position 

The notes to the finnnciul ~h1kmt!11ls nre an integral part of this sh1lctncnl. 

20 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT E-1 

Private Tnlal 

l'urpnsc Custodial 

Trust Pund Funds 

7,:565 $ 413.608 
10,:m 

7,565 $ 424,181 

142,676 
230.844 

373.520 

7.565 50,661 

7,565 $ 50,661 
~ 



SANTA MA RIA INl>FPENDENT SCHOOL I >lSTRICT 
SlATEMl·'.NTOF Cl IANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITfON 

FIDUCIARY 1-'l JNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED A 1 JC,'UST 31, 2024 

ADDITIONS: 

Earn in gs from Tempmary Dcpos its 

OLher Local Revenue 

Tutul Addilioni; 

IWDUCTIONS: 

Payment Tu Othe1-s 

Total Deductions 

Clrnngc in Fiduciary Net Position 

Tolul Net Position - Scptemhcr I (Beginning) 

Total Ncl Posiliun - Angusl 31 (J-:nding) 

The notes to the financial sta(cmcnls are an inti:r;ral pait of this statcmcnl. 
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$ 

$ 

Private 
l'urpo~c 

Tn.i!il Fund 

129 

18,965 

19,()94 

l l.614 

11,614 

7,480 

85 

7.565 

$ 

$ 

EXHJBIT E-2 

'l'olul 

Custodial 
Funds 

58,41:l 

58,413 

47,213 

47,243 

11,170 

39,491 

50,(i<il 
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SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Fim1ncial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31 , 2024 

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The basic financial statements or Santa Maria Independent School District (the ''District") have 
been prepared in confonnity with accnunting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America C'GAAP") applicable to governmental l111H~ in cor~junction with the Texa<; 
Edm:ation Agency's Financial Accountability System Resource Gui<lc ("Resource Guide''). 
The Gov<.::rrunental Accounting Standards Roard ("GASB") is the accepted standard setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

Pensions. The lkluciary net position of the Teacher Retirement Systeni ol' Texas (TRS) has 
been determined w;ing the flow of economic resources rneasmement focus and full accrual 
basis of accounting. This includes for pmposes of measuring the net position liahility, de'lerred 
outflows of resources related lo pensions, pension expense, and information about <1ssels, 
liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS's fiduciary nel position. Benefit payments 
(induding refunds of employee contributions) arc recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments arc reported at fair value. 

1. REPORTING ENTITY 

The Board or School Trn!:itees ("Board"), a sevenwmember group, ba~ govemancc 
responsibilities over all activities rclaLed to public elementary and secondary education within 
the jmisdiction of the District. The Board is elected by t},e public and has the exclusjve power 
and duty to govern and oversee the management of the public schools of the District. All 
powers and duties not specifically delegated by statute to the Texas Education Agency 
("TEA") or to the State lloard of Education are reserved for the Roard, and the TEA may not 
substitute its judgment for the lawful exercise of those powers and duties by the Board. The 
District receives fw1ding from local, state and federal government sources and mw;t comply 
with the requfremenls of those fi.mding entities. However, the District is not included in any 
other governmental "reporting entity" as defined hy the GASB in its Statement No. 141 "The 
Financial Reporting Entity'' and there arc no component units included within the reporting 
entity. 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASTS OF ACCOUNTING 

a. Basis of Presentation 

Gowmment-widc Financial Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement 
of activitie~ include the financial activities oC the overall government, except for 
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting or 
internal ,1ctivities. Govemtn<.::ntal activities generally arc financed through Lax.es, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. 
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SANT A MAlUA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Fimincial Statements 

For The Y car Ended August 3 I, 2024 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each function or the Distdcfs governmental activities. Direct expenses are 
those that arc specifically associated with a probrram or function and, therefore, are 
clearly identifiable to a particular (unction. The District does not allocate indirect 
expenses in the statement of activities. Progtam revenues include (a) foes, fines and 
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) 
gnmts and contrihutions that arc restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements or a particular program. Revenues that arc not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, arc presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The Cund financial statements provide information about 
the District's funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The 
emphasis of runcl financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed 
in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported 
as nomnajor l"unds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges 1hr services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the rund. Exchange trnnsactious 
arc those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. 
Nonopcrating revenues, sucb as suhsidies and investment earnings, result from 
nonexchange transactions or ancillary uctivities. 

The District reports the following major govenunental funds: 

Gcnc.ral Fund: This 1s the District' s piirnary operating fund. Tt accounts for all 
financial resources or the District except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Debt Service Funds: The District accounts for resources accmnulatcd and payments 
rnade for principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental 
funds in a debt service fund. 

Additionally; the District reports the following fund typc(s): 

Special Revenue Funds: The District accounts for resources restricted to, or designated 
for, specific purposes by the District or a grantor in a special revenue fond. Most Federal 
and some State financial fL'5sistance is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund, and 
sometimes unused balances ruu..-;t he returned to the grantor at the close of specified 
project periods. 

Capital Projects l•"und: The proceeds from longMtenn debt financing and revenues and 
expenditures related to authorized construction and other capital asset acquisitions are 
accounted fbr in a capital projects fond. 
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SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DIS'flUCT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

Permanent Funds: The District accounts for donations ror which the donor has 
stipulated that the principal may not he expended and where the income may only be 
used for pw-poscs that support the Dishict's programs. The District has no Permanent 
Funds. 

Custodial Funds: The District accounts for resources held for others in a custodial 
capacity in custodial funds. These funds arc used to account for assets held by the 
District as an custodian for student an<l othl.'.:r organizations. These fhnds were previously 
reported in an agency fund. This change resulted in reporting the detail of additions and 
deductions from custodial funds cau~ing a change in the fund net position whereas these 
details were not reported for agency funds. This change in a result ofthe implementation 
ofGASR 84. 

Otber Special Revenue Funds: The District accounts for resources restricted to, or 
designated for, specific purposes by the District or a grantor in a special revenue fund. 
Most Federal and some State financial assistance is accounted ror in a Special Revenue 
Fund, and sometimes unused balances must be returned to lhe grantor at the close of 
specified project periods. 

Fiduciary Funds: These funds arc reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. 
However, because their assets arc held in a trustee or custodial capacity and are therefore 
not available to support District prngrams, these runds arc not included in the 
government-wide statements. 

h. Measurement l◄'ocu~, Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide_, .Proprietary, an<l Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These 
financial statements arc reported using the economic resources meusuremenl focus. The 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the 
accrual basis or accounting. Revenues ,ire recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorder at the time liabilities arc incurred, regardless of when the related cash Hows 
take place. Nonexchangc transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value 
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include properly taxes, 
grants, entitlements, an<l donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is 
recognized in the fiscal year in whil;h all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the 
current financial resow-ces measurement focus and the modified accrual basis or 
accounting. Under this method, revenues an:~ ret:ognizcd when measurable and 
available. The District docs not consider revenues collected after its year-end to be 
available in the t:urrent period. Revenues frorn lot:al sources consist primarily of 
property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are 
recognized under the susceptihle-to-accrual concept. 
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SANT A MARIA INDEI1ENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Slalen1ents 

For The Year Ended August 31 , 2024 

Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they arc 
generally not measurable until aclually received. Investment earning~ are recorded as 
earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when 
lhe related fond liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on genenil long­
tern1 debt, claims and judgm0nts, and compensated absences, which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt 
and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

When the District incurs an expenditure or expense for which both reshicted and 
unrestricted resources may be used, it is the District's policy to use unrestricted 
resources first, then restricted resources. 

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accotmting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary 
funds and Other Oovemmental Entities That "Use Proprietary Fund Accounting," all 
proprieuuy fonds will continue lo follow Financial Accounting Standards Board 
("FASI3") standards issued on or before November 30, 1989. However, from that date 
forward, proprietary funds will have the option of either I) choosing not to apply fulure 
F ASB standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), or 2) continue to 
follow new FASB pronouncements unless lhey conflict with GA.Sil guidance. The 
District has chosen to apply fot11re FASB standards. 

3. F1NANCJAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS 

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purpose of the statement of cash flows for propfictary and similar fund-type~, the Disttict 
considers highly liquid investments to be cash equivalents if they lmve a matutity of three 
months or less when purchased. 

b. Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied by October I on the assessed value listed as of' the prior January 1 for 
all real and business petsonal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. 
Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are <leltnquent if not paid before February l of the 
year following the year in which imposed. On January I of each year. a. tax lien attaches to 
pro petty to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property 
tax revenues arc considered available when tl,ey become due or past due and receivable within 
the current period. 

Delinquent Taxes 
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 

Net Taxes 

General 
Fund 

$ 141 ,895 
(21,284) 

$ 120,611 
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Debt Service 
Fund 

$ 84,008 
(12,601) 

$ 71 ,407 

Total 
$ 225,903 

(33,885) 
$ 192,018 



SANT A MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOO I; DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Y car Ended August 3 I , 2024 

Allowances for uncollecLible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are 
based upon historical experience in colkcting property Laxes. Uncollcctible personal prnpcrty 
taxes are pe1io<lically reviewed and written off, but the District is prohibited from writing oil 
real prope1ty Laxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas Lcgislatme. 

c. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

The District records pun:hases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method of 
accounting for inventory in ac-cor<lant:e with the Resource Guide. Cert~i.in Paymi;:nts to vendors 
retlec.:t costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 

d. Capital Assets 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or esLimatcd historical cost. 
Donated fixed assets are reconfod at their estimated fair value at the date or the donation. The 
cost of nonnal maintenance an<l repairs that do not a<l<l to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets' lives arc not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is useci 

Capital assets are being depreciated using Lhe straight-line method over the following esLimated 
useful lives: 

Asset. Cluss 

Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Vehicles 
Office Et.1uipmcnt 
Computer Equipment 

Rstimatcd 
Useru!_Live~ 

20-40 
20-40 
8-10 
5-15 
5-10 

Right-to-use leased assets and 813l'l'A assets are dcptcciated/amo1t iz;ed using the straight line 
method over the term ofthe respective agreements. 

e. Receivable and Payahlc Balances 

The District believes that sufficient <leLail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the 
financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant t:omponcnts by aggregation. 
Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances. 

There are no significant receivables which am not scheduled for collection within one year of 
year end. 
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SANT A MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Pinancial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31 , 2024 

f. Iotcrfund Activity 

Intcrfund activity results from loans, service provided, reimbursements or transfen; between 
li..mds. Loans are reported as intcrfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject 
to elimination upon consolidation Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market 
rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one 
fon<l incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting rLmcl and reduces its related cost as 
rein:ibun;ement. Ail otber interfun<l transactions are treatt:d as tnmsfers. Transfers ln and 
Transfers Out arc netted and presented us a single "Transfers" line on tbe governn,cnt-wiclc 
statement of activities. Similarly, inter/und receivables m:id payables are netted and presented 
as a single "Internal Balances" Line oftbe government-wide sLatement of net assets. 

g. Use of Estimates 

The pi-eparation of financial statements m conformity with GAAP requfrcs the \lSC of 
management's estimates. 

h. Data Control Codes 

Data Control Codes appear in the rows ,ind ahovc the columns of certain financial statements. 
The TEA requires the display of these codes in Lhe financial statemenLs filed with TEA in order 
to insure accuracy in building a statewide database for policy development and funding plans. 

1. Fund Balances 

Pund balances of the governmental funds arc classified as follows: 

Nonspen<lahlc Fund Balance - represents amotmts that cannot be spent because they are either 
not in spendahle fbrm (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain 
intact (such as nott:s receivable or principal or a permanent fund) . 

Restricted Fund Balance - rt;presents amounts that arc constrained by external parties, 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

CommHted Fund l3alance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose 
because of a fonnal action by the Districl's governing board. Committed amounLs cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the 
same type or formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes 
with appropriate due process by the governing board. Conllllilrnents are typically done through 
adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund b,1Jance amounts differ from 
restricted balances in that the constraints of their use do not come from outside parties, 
constitntional provisions, or enahling legislation. 
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SANT A MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOi, DISTRICT 
Notes to the financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

Assigned Fund Ualance - represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific 
pmpose, hut that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may 
be stipulute<l hy the governing board or hy an official or body to which the governing board 
delegales the authority. Specific amounts that arc not restricted or conunitted in a special 
revenue, capital projects, debt service or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in 
accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund ' s primary purpose. Assignments 
within the general fond conveys that the intended use or those amounts is fbr a specific purpose 
that is narrower than the general purposes of the District itsd r. 

Unassib'lled Fund Balance - represents cunounts which are unconstrained in that they may he 
spent for any pm11ose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other 
governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classincation because of' 
overspending for :-peci fie purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or 
assigned. 

When an expenditure is incun-ed for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund 
balance is available, tl1c Dist1i ct considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 
expenditure is incurred for whith committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances arc 
available, the District considers amounts to havt: been spent first out of committed funds, then 
assigned funds, and flnally unassigned funds. 

_j. Pensions 

The fiduciary net pos1t1on of the Teacher Retirenwnt System of Texas (TRS) has been 
determined using the flow or economic resources measlltemcnt focus and Cull accrual basis of 
accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred in!lows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, 
and information about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS' s fiduciary net 
position. Benefit payments (including rnfunds of employee contributions) are recognb;ed 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments arc repo1ted at fair 
value. 

k. Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The llcluciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) TRS Care Plan 
has been determined using the flow or economic resources measurement focus and /'ull accrual 
basis or accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring lhe net OPEB liability, deforred 
outflows of resources and dcfcned inflows of resources related Lo post-employment benefit:-:;, 
OPEI3 expense, and information about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions frnm TRS 
Care' s fiduciary net position. Uenefit payments arc recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. There are no investments as this is a pay-as you-go plan 
and all cash is held in a cash account. 
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SANT A MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

I. Change in Accounting Principle 

GASD Statement No. I 00, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections an amendment cf 
GASE Statement No. 62, was adopted effective July 1, 2023. The prima1y objective of this 
statement is to enh;ince accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting 
changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, 
and comparable information fonn making decisions or assessing accountability. 

B. STRW ARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 

ln accordance with GASB Statement No, ] R, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," 
violation of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along 
with actions taken to address such violations: 

Violation 
None reported 

Action.Taken 
Not applicable 

2. Deficit Fund Balance or .Fund net Assets of Individual Fune.ls 

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets al year end, if any, along 
with remarks which address such deficits: 

Fund Name 
NIA 

3. Budgetary Data 

Deficit 
Amount_ Remarks 

The Uoard of Trustees adopts an "appropriated budget" for the General Fund, Debt Service 
Fund, and the Fl)Od Service Fund which is included in the Special Revt.mue Funds. The District 
is required to present the adopted and final amended budgeted revenues and expenditures for 
each of these funds. The District compares the final amended budget to actual revenues and 
expenditures. The General Fund Budget report appears in Exhibit G-1 and the other two 
reports are in Exhibit J2 and J3. 

The following prncedurcs are followed in cstablishiJ1g the budgetary data reflected in the 
gcneral~puq,nse linancial statements: 

1. Prior to August 20 the District prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year 
beginning September I. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

29 



SANT A MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31 , 2024 

2. A meeting of the Doan) is then called fi.1r the purpose of adopllng the proposed budget. 
At least ten days public notice of the meeting must be given. 

3. Prior to Septemher I, the budget is legally enacted through passage or a resolution by 
the Board. Once a budget is approved, it can only ht: amended at the !"unction and fm1d 
level by approval of a majority of the memben; of the Hoard. Amendments arc 
presented to the Board at ils regular meetings. Each amendment mu~t have Roard 
approval. As required by law, ~uch amendments an~ made before the fact, are reflected 
jn the official minutes of the Board, and arc not made ailer fiscal year end. Because lhe 
District has a policy of careful budgetary control, several c11:nen<lmcnts were necessary 
during the year. 

4. Rach budget is controlled hy the budget coordinator at the revenue and expenditure 
function/o~ject level. Budgeted amounts are as amended by the Board. All hudget 
appropriations lapse at year end. A reconciliation of fund balances for both 
appropriated budget and nonappropriated budget special revenue funds is as follows; 

Appropriated Hudg1.;~ Funds - rood Service Special Revenue 

.FL1nd 

Nonappropriated Dud get Funds 

/\II Special Rcvcncie f\mds 

5. Excess of expenditure over appropriations 

August 3 1, 2024 
Fiin<l Oalance 

$ 71 l ,091 

2,795,485 

$ 3,506,576 

The following is a list or the excess of expenditures over appropriations, al the legal 
control by an individual fhn<l. 

J-'und Function Amount of Excess 

General Fund Instruction $ (707,495) 

Gonoral Fund lustructional Leadership (35 ,558) 

General Fund School Leadership (39,097) 

General Fund Guidan1;e, Counseling, t1nd Evaluation Services ( 12,090) 

General Fund Student (Pupil) Trnnspo11ation (155,937) 

General run<l Extrncurricu Jar Activities (64 ,902) 

u~neral Fund General Administration (84,661) 

General fund Pacililil.-s Maintenance and Operations (122,998) 

General 11und Uata Proce.~sing Services (27,001) 

General 1-'trnd Debt Service - Principal on Long-Term l .iahilities (14,953) 

Ueneral Fund Oeht Service - Interest on Long-Term 1,iablilics (6,913) 

General Fund Facilities Acquisition and Construction (10,461) 

$ (1,282,066) 
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C. DRPOSITS AND lNVl!:STMENTS 

The District's funds arc required to be deposiletl and invested under the terms of a depository 
contract. The depository bank dt::posits for safekeeping and trnst with the District's agent bank 
approved pledged securilies in an amount sufficient to protect District funds on a day~to-day 
hasis dui-ing the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to 
the extent of the deposilory bank' s dollar amounl of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
("FDIC") insurance. 

1. Cash Deposits: 

At August 31 , 2024, the carrying amount of the District' s deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, 
and interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $2, 196,8 I 8 and 
the bank balance was $2,205,961. The District's cash deposits at August 31 , 2024 and during 
lhe year ended August 31, 2024, were entirely covered by the FDIC insurance or hy pledged 
collateral held by the District's agent bank in the District's name. 

2. Investments: 

The District is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, 
to adopt, implement, uud publicize an investment policy. 'l'ha:t policy must address the 
fi.)llowing areas: (1) safety of'principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable 
investments, (4) acceptable ri~k levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable 
slated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity 
allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portf<.>lio, (8) investment staff quality and 
capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preletenccs for ce1tificates or deposit. 

The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit or investment practices. 
Audit procedures in Lhi s area conducted as a part orthe audit of the basic financial statements 
disclosed that in t.he areas or investment practice, management reports and establishment of 
appropriate policies, the Dislrid adhered to the requirements of the Act. Additionally, 
investment practices of the DisL1ict were in accordance with local policies. 

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the Districl. Tht::se 
include, with certain restl-ictions, 1) obligalions of the U.S. Treasury, l J.S. agencies, and the 
State of Texas, 2) certificates of deposit, 3) cerlain municipal securilies, 4) securities lending 
program, 5) repurchase agreements, 6) bankers acceptances, 7) mutual funds, 8) investment 
pools, 9) guarante~d investment contracts, and 10) commercial paper. 

The District' s inveslme.nts at August 31 , 2024 are shown below. 
lnvestmcnt or Investment TX~ Maturity Fair Value --------
Tex L' oo I N/A $ 565,531 

Total Investments $ 565,511 
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3. Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks 

GASB Statement no. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to 
the following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related 
disclosures: 

a. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recogniied rating agencies are 
designed to give an indication of credit l'isk. At year end the District was not significantly 
exposed to credit risk. 

At August 31 , 2024, the District's investments, other than those which are obligations of or 
guaranteed by the U.S. Government, are rated as to credit quality as follows: 

Rating Rating Agency 
TexPool AAAm Standard and Poor's 

b. Custodial Credit Risk 

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk it they a.re not covered by depository insurance 
and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institutions, or oollateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution' s trust department ot agent, but not in the District's name. 

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsmed, are 
not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the 
counterparty's trust department or agent but 1iot in the District's namt::. 

At year end1 the District was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

c. Concentration of Credit Risk 

This is the risk that in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At 
year end, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk. 

d. Interest Rate Risk 

This is the Jisk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. At year end, the rnstrict was not exposed to interest rate risk. 

e. Foreign Currency Risk 

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At 
year eud, the District was not exposed to foreign currency risk. 
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Investment Accounting Policy 

The District' s general policy is to report money market investments and shorl-lerrn 
partiGipating interest-earning inve~lmcnt contracts al amo1tized cost and to repo1t 
nonparticipating interest-earning investrnt:lnt contracts using a cost-based measun:. However, 
if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected hy the impairment or the credit 
standing of the issuer or by other factor:,, it is reported al fair value. All other investments arc 
reported at fair value unless a legal contrad exists which guarantees a higher va]ue_ The lenn 
"short-term" refors to investment's value does not va1y with market interest rate cha,.ngcs. 
Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparlidpating interest-earning 
investment contracts. 

Public Funds Investment Pools 

Public funds investment pools in Texas ("Pools") are established under the authority or the 
lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code. In addition to other 
provisions of the AGt designed to promote liquidity and safety or principal, the Act require$ 
Pools to: 1) have nn advisory board composed of participants in Lhe pool and other persons 
who do not have a business relationship with the pool and arc qualified to advise the pool; 2) 
maintain a continuous rating or no lower that AAA or AAA-m or tm equival~nt rating by at 
least one nationally recognized rating service; ,ind 3) maintain the markd value of its 
underlying investment po1tfoli.o within one half of one percent of the value of its shares, 

The District's investments in Pools are reported at an amount detcnnincd by the fair value per 
share of the pool ' s underlying pmtfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-lilrn, in which case they 
arc reported at share value. A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the ScGurilics 
and Exchange Commission ("SEC') as an inv4.::stmcnt company, hut nevertheless has a policy 
that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SUC's Rule 2a7 of lhc Investment 
Company Act of 1940. 
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The District invests in the Texas Local Govcrnmenl Investment Pool (TexPool), which is a 
local govcnuncnt investment pool that was established in conformity with the Intcrlocal 
Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of Lhe Texas Government C{)de, and operates under the Public 
Punds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 or Lhe Texas Govenunent Code. The State Comptroller 
of Public Accounts oversees TexPool. Federated Investors, Inc. is the adminislrntor and 
Investment manager of TcxPoo1 Under ,1 rnmtract with the State Comptroller. In accordance 
with the Public Funds Investment Act, the Slate Comptroller has appointed the TexPool 
Investment Advisory Board to advise with respect lo TcxPool. The board is composed equally 
of participants in TexPool Porllcilios and other persons who do not have a business relationship 
with TexPool P01tfolios and are qualified to advise in rt!Speet to TexPool Portfolios. The 
Advisory Hoard members review the Investment policy and management fee structure. 
TexPool is rated /\i\/\m by Standard & Poor's m1d operates in u manner consistent with the 
SEC' s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. All Investments are stated at 
amo1iized cosl, which usually approximates the market value of the securities. The stated 
objective of Tex.Po(>l is to maintain a stable averagt: $ l .00 per unit net asset value; however, 
the $1. 00 net asset value is not guaranteed or insured. The financial statements can be obtained 
from the Texas Trust Safekeeping Trust Company webslte at www.ttstc.org. 
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I>. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2024, was as follows: 

Governmental 111.;li'{Jlies; 
Capital aslids nol being depreciated 
Land 
Construction i11 Progre~s 

Tola! ct\pital assets not being dcprt-ciatcd 

capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and Improvements 
Furnilore o.nd EquipmL'III 
Vehicles 
Right-to-use lease assets • Equipm~I 

Totals capital as~cts being deprecio_ted 

Less Accumuluted f)epi:eciatioo fo.c: 
Buildings und i111provemenf$ 
Furniture & Tiquipment 
Vehicles 
R.ighl-10-usc lease assets • Equipment 
Total Accumulated D<.')lrcciation 

$ 

Beginning 
Balances 

247,824 $ 
68,417 

316,241 

27,739,158 
I, [60,259 
I. 151.7116 

62,413 
30,113,576 

(8,003,038) 
(641,750) 
(933,076) 
(33,287) 

(9,611.,151) 

ln~r~~ses 

389,882 
389,8112 

255,503 
361,890 
200,797 

818,190 

(709,861) 
(102,771) 

(64,747) 
~[2,411]) 

~889,862) 

$ 

Decreoses/ 
Adjustments 

91 ,221 
91.221 

Total capital assets beiug depreciated, net $ 20,Rl!l,666 $ 318,210 $ 91,221 

Depreciation wus clmrged to functions as follow.;: 
lnstmctlon 
Instructional Resources and Media Services 
Curriculum Oevelopmcnt and Instructional St~ff Develop111e111 
Inslrnc!.ional I .eadcrship 
School L1:t1dership 
Guidance, Cou1t~eling, & Evaluating s~rviccs 
Hc~llh Services 
Stodent (Pupil) Transpmilltion 
Foo<l Services 
Coc1ilTicular/Extrac111Ticulnr Aclivitir:.~ 
General Administration 
Plnnt Maintenance and Operution 
SecUl'ity and Monitoring Servi~-es 
Dato Processing Services 
Community s~rvices 
Toto! Depreciation Expense 

$ 

$ 
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475,878 
4,194 

14,747 
7,301 

45,223 
30,135 
9,024 

21,521 
60,1 19 
25,007 
76,934 

102,607 
446 

13,815 
2,911 

889,862 

Ending 
Bahmct:S 

s 247,8:.Z4 
367,078 
614,902 

27,994,661 
1,522,149 
1,352,543 

62,413 
30,931,766 

(8,712,899) 
(744,521) 
(997,823) 
(45,770} 

j l0,501 1012) 
$ 21,045,655 
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INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTMTIES 

1. Due To and From Other Funds 

Due From Due To Amount 

General Fund Custodial Fund $ 10,573 

General Fund General Fund 47,410 

Capital Projects General Fund lilOO 

Debt Service Fund Capital Project Fund 80,596 

General Fund Debt Service Fund 100,000 

General Fund Capital Projects 123,500 

Custodial Fund General Fund 230,844 
$593,923 

FUND BALANCES 

The District has nonspendable, restricted, committed, and unassigned fund balance as follows. 

Nonspendable Fund BaJances: 
Inventories 
Prepaid Items 

Restricted Fund Balances: 
f ederal/State Funds Grant Restrictions 
Capital Projects 
Retirement of Long"Terin Debt 

Unassigned: 
Total fund Balances 
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$ 4,281 
18,836 

314,761 
209,212 
537,815 

$ 1,061,788 

2,608,762 
$ 3,693.667 
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G. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The District has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports 
and Material Event Notices to the State Information Depository of Texas, which is the 
Municipal Advisory Council. This infom1ation is required UJ1der SEC Rule 15c2-12 to enable 
investors to analyze the financial condition and operations of the District. 

1. Long-Term Obligations Activity 

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term 
Obligations~ for the year ended August 31, 2024, are as follows: 

lntetcit An1¢u,1ts Interest 8C11innln£ Endin~ 

Maturity Hate Oti&lnal current Balance Bi lance 

Date Issue Year 9/1/2022 lntroasos Decreases 8/ 31/2023 Descriet1on 
2015 Unlimited f ax Refundlns Bondi 2/15/2034 

Pa'fable 
• 2;4% $ 1,565,000 l9,100 1,01:S,ooo $ 75,000 $ 940,000 ' $ 

l016 Uollm1t~d Ta~ ~chool 8ulldlnr. Bonds 2/15/2046 Z-4% 6,005,000 W0,500 s.100,000 140,000 

Wl 61\ unnmitcd Tax School 8ulldin! Bonds 2/15/]~G H% 2,795,000 82,787 2,360,000 65,000 

2021 Unlimited T~x School Building Bonds 2/1S/2051 3-S" 3,325,000 102,150 3,200,000 70,000 

2020 Unllrnitcd Tax Refunding Bonds 2/15/2031 2-4% 1,265,000 35,900 915,00Q 105,000 

Premium and d1swu111 1,149,207 74,293 

flnanclne l\rranserneou 5,987 200,7!17 36,969 

Total Lon1H~rm Debt 5 400,437 $ 13,7l9,207 $ i00,797 s 56G,262 

Net Pension Llabilitv l ,953,462 158,235 

Net OPES Liability l.92G,S32 350,902 

Total Other LonK·Term Dl'l1l 4,879,994 158,235 350,902 

Total Governmcnt31 AelNlt!~.J s 460,437 s l8,ot9.201 s 359,032 917,164 

•nn August 30, 2023 rho DiWrcr opprovf.d a lleso/utlon Authorizing the Defeasonce of Cena in Portions of the District's Currently Qtijfandlna 

0/;/igntlon for the 1024 Jim,/ yrtir. $500,000 of series 2015, Unllmlted rax R~/undina 8<Jfidr 

Debt Service Requirements 

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at August 31, 2024, are as follows: 

Year Ending August 31, 

2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
Thereafter 

Totals 

Governmental Activities 

Principal Interest Total 
475,000 446,163 921,163 
495,000 426,063 921,063 
515,000 405,138 920,138 

525,000 383,563 908,563 

555,000 361,138 916,138 

9,570,000 3,243,573 12,813,573 

$12,135,000 $5,265,638 $17,400,638 
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4.%0,000 
2,29S,U00 

3,130,000 

810,000 
1,074,914 

l6J,Bl8 
13,373,M2 

.3,l11,t97 
1,S7S,G30 
4,687,ll7 

$ 18,D61,069 $ 

Due 

Within 
one ~car 

80,000 
145,000 
70,000 
70,000 

110,000 
,~.n, 
3S,IU5 

5a4,998 

584,998 
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Capital Lease lJ~bt service requirements on long-term debt at August 31, 2024, are as foJ!ows: 
Governmental Activities 

Year Endin~ Ausust 31, PrinciEal Jnterest Total 
2025 $ 35,705 $ 11 ,740 $ 47,445 

2026 38,398 9,046 47,444 

2027 41,313 6,132 47,445 

2028 44,467 2,978 1(7,445 

2029 3,945 63 4,008 

Thereafter 
Totals $ 163,828 $ 29,959 $ f93,787 

Ad'1anced and current refundings 

On September 28, 2015, the district issued $1,565,000 of unlimited tax refunding bonds to 
provide resources to achieve a gross debt service savings of approximately $229,952 and a net 
present value savings of approximately $188,029_, being equal to 11.976407% net present value 
. . 

savings for the refunded bonds. The net effective intel'est rate of the Bonds is 3.501840%. As 
a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability hus been removed 
from the governmental activities column of the statement of net assets. The escrow agent shall 
apply the proceeds of lhe bonds in the amount of $1,600,496 in the form of cash to refund the 
refunded bonds series 2004. 

On November 4, 2020, the district issued $1;265,000 of unlimited tax refunding bonds to 
provide resources to achieve a gross debt service savings of approximately $13,082 and a net 
present value savings of approximately $585,000, being equal to 22.5434% net present value 
savings for the refunded bonds. The net effective interest rate of the Bonds is 2-4%. As a 
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed 
from the governmental activities column of the statement of net assets. The escrow agent shall 
apply the proceeds of the bonds in the amount of $1,344,536 in the form of cash to refund the 
refunded bonds series 2010. 
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2. Right-To-Use Lease Liabilities Payable 

The District leases photocopy machines with an agreement. having a 5-year term. Average payments 
of $1 ,147 arc made monthly which consist of principal and imputed annual interest ranging of '1.25%. 
No assets were pledged as eoll.ateral for these leases. 

A sumnrnry of Right-To-Use Lease nrrangements fur the year ended August 3 l, 2024, is as follows: 

Interest Origilrnl Current Arruunts 

Rule 1.casc Year B~giuning Alljtt~ttrcnts/ Ending Due Wilhirl 

Payable Lil1bilily lnlere.~t Balance lncrca.~cs Dccn:ases Ila lance One Year 

TOSHIBA I.cases, 4.25% $ 62,413 $ 776 s 29,781 s - $ 12,98'1 $ 16,797 s 13,1112 

.Ian uary 2021 

folal s 776 $ 29,781 $ - $ 12,984 $ 
~ 

16,797 $ 13,412 

Future principal and interest payments due to matmity as ofthe end of the fiscal year are as follows: 

Y !!itr Ending August 31, 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
Totals 

JI. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Principal 
$ 13,412 

3,38.'i 

$ 16,797 

Governmental Activities 

Interest 
$ 347 $ 

55 

$ 402 $ 

Total 
13,759 
3,440 

17,199 

The Dist1ict is exposed to various risks or loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of 
assets, enors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2024, 
the District purchased commercial insuram:e lo cover general liabilities. There were no significant 
reduction in coverage in the past fiscal yeclf and, 

J. DEFINED BENEJ?JT PENSION PLAN 

A. Plan DescriJ>tion 

The District participates in a multiple-employer, cost-sharing, defined benefit pension that has a 
special funding situation. The plan is administered by the Teacher Rctiren,ent System of Texas 
(TRS). It is a defined benefit pension plcm estahlished and administered in accordance with the 
Texas Constitution, Article XVl, Section 67 and Texas Government Code, Tit.le 8, Subtitle C. The 
pc:nsion trust fund is a qualified pension trust under Section 401 (a) or the Internal Revenue Code. 
The Texas Legislature estahfo;hcs benefits and contribution rat.es within the guidelines of the Texas 
Constitution. The pension' s Board or Trustees does not have the authority to establish or amend 
benefit tetms. 
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All employees of publiG, slate~supported educational institutions in Texas who arc employed for 
one-half or more of the standard work.load and who are not exempted from membership under 
Te.xas Govemmcnt Code, Title 8, Section 822.002 are covered by the system. 

B. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed in:fom1alion about the Teacher Retirement System' s fiduciary net position is avail ah le in 
a separately issued Annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Repotl (ACFR) that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary infom,ation. That reporl may be obtained on the 
Internet at httg://www.trs.Lexas.gov/Pag,es/about publicatlons.as_Q~; by writing Lo TRS at 1000 
Red River Street, Austin, TX, 78701-2698; or by ca.Hing (512) 542-6592. 

C. Benefits Provided 

TRS provides service and disability retiremenl, as well as death and survivor benefits, to eligible 
employees (mid their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas, The pension formula 
is calculated using 2.3 percent (multiplier) times the average of the five highest annnal creditable 
salaries times years of credited service to arrive at the <mnual standard annuity except for members 
who are grandfathered, the three highest annual salaries are use<l. The normal servic1,:: retirement 
is al age 65 with 5 years of credited service or when the sum of the member' s age and years or 
credited service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is al age 55 with 5 years of st::rviee credit 
or earlier lhan 55 with 30 years of service credit. There are a<l<litional provisions for early 
retirement if Lhe sum of the member' s age and years of service credit total at least 80, but Lhe 
member is less than age 60 or 62 depending on date of employmenl, or if the member was 
grandfathered in under a previous rule. There are no automatic post-employment benefit changes; 
including automatic COLAs. Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes, including ad hoc COLAs 
can be granted by the Texas Legislature as noted in the Plan description in (A) above. 

Texas Government Code section 821 .006 prohibits benefit improvements, if, as a result of t.hc 
particular action, the time required Lo amortize TRS unli..m<lcd actuarial liabilities would be 
increased to a period that exceeds 31 years, or, if the amorti7.ation period already exceeds 31 years, 
the period would be increased by such action. Actuarial irnplicalions of the funding provided in 
the manner are determined by the System' s actuary. 

D. Contributions 

Contribution requirements are established or amended pursuant to A1ticle 16, section 67 of the 
Texas Constitution which requires the Texas legislature to establish a member contribution rate of 
not less than 6 percent of the member's annual compensation and a state contribution rate or not 
less than 6 percent and not more than 10 percent of the aggregate annual compensation paid to 
members of the system dming the fiscal year. 
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Employee contTibut1on rates arc set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402. The TRS 
Pe~sion Reform Bill (Senate Bill 12) of the 86th Texas Legislature amended Texas Government 
Code 825.402 for member contributions and increased employee and employer contribution rates 
for fo,cal years 2019 tlml 2025. 

Contribution Rates 

Member 

Non-Employtu Contributing Entity (State) 

Employers 

Santa Maria 15D's 2024 Employer Contributions 

Santa Maria ISD's 2024 Member Contributions 

Santa Maria 15D's 2023 NECE On-Behalf Contributions 

2023 

8.00% 
8.00% 

8.00% 

2024 
8.25% 
8.25% 
8.25% 

$ 223,581 

$ 621,317 

$ 495,493 

Contributors to the pJan include members, employers and the State of Texas as the only non­
employer contributing entity. The State is the employer for senior college:,, medical schools and 
stale agencies including TRS. Tn each respective role, the State contributes to the plan in 
accordance with state statutes and the General Appropriations Act (GAA). 

As the non-employer contributing entity for public education and jm1ior colleges, the State or 
Texas contributes to the retirement system an amount equal to the cunent employer conbibution 
rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all participating members of the pension trust 
fund during that l1scal year reduced by the amounts described below which arc paid by the 
employers. Employers (public school, junior college, other entities or the State of Texas as Lhe 
employer for senior uuiversilies and medical schools) are required to pay the employer 
contribution rate in the following instances: 

• On the portion of the member's salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entitled 
to the statutory minimum under Section 21.402 of the Texas Education Code. 

• During a new member's first 90 days of employment. 
• When any part or all or an employee's salary is paid by federal funding somecs, a privately 

sponsored source, from non-educational and general, or local funds. 
• When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the employer 

shall contJibuLe to the retirement system an amount. equal to 50 percent of the state contribution 
rate for certain instructional or administrative employees; and I 00 percent of the state 
contribution rate for all other employees. 
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ln addition to the employer contributions listed ahove, there is a surcharge an employer is subjed 
to: 

• All public schools, charter schools, ancl regional educational service centers must contribute 
1.8 percent of the mcmbces salary beginning in fiscal year 2023, gradually increasing to 2 
percent in fiscal year 2025. 

• When employing a retiree of the Teacher Retirement System, the employer shall pay both 
the member conl"r:ihution and the state contribution as an employment al'Ler retirement 
surcharge. 

K Actuarial Assum1ltions 
The total pension liability in the August 31, 2022 actuarial v;-iluation was determined using the 
following actuarial a':>sumptions: 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Mllthod 

Asset Valuation Method 

Singlll Discount Rate 

r ,ong•lcrm Expected Rate 

Muncipal Buud Rate as of August 2022 

Last year ending August 31 in Projection Period 

100 Years 

Inflation 

Sala1y Income lncluding Inflation 

Acl hoc post-employment benefit changes 

J\ugu~t 3 I, 2022 rolled forward tu J\ugust 

31.2023 

Individual Entry Age Normal 

1-'air Value 

7.00% 

7.00% 
4.1 ]%. The sourno for the rate is the Fiaxcd 
lncumc Market. l),ita/Yield Curvll/Data 
Municipal Bonds with 20 years to mut11rity 

that include only federally tax-exempt 
municipal bonds as rcportt:d in Fidelity 
Index's "20-Ycar Municipal GO AJ\ 

Index." 

2122 

2.30% 

2.95% to 8.!J5% 

None 

The actuarial methods and assumptions are used jn the determination of lhe total pension liability 
arc the same assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of August 3 l , 2022. For a full 
description of these assumptions please sec the actuarial valuation report dated November 22, 
2022. 
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F. Discount Rate 

A single discount rate of 7.00 percent was used to measure the total pension liability. The single 
discount rate was based on the expected rate orretum on pension plan investments of7.00 percent. 
The projection of cash flows used to detennine the discotmt rate assumed that contributions from 
active members, e111ployers and the non-employer contributing entity will he made at the rates set 
hy the legislature dming the 2019 session. It is assumed that future employer at1d state 
contributions will be 9.50 percent of'payroll in fiscal year 2024 increasing to 9.56 percent in fiscal 
year 2025 and thereafter. This includes all employer and state contributions for activt! and rehired 
retirees. 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available 
to make all future benefit payments of cmTent plan members. Therefore, the long-term expccled 
rate ofreturn on pension plan investments was applied lo all periods ofprojectt:d benefit payments 
to determine the tot.al pension liability. 

The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.00 percent The long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to pl"o<luce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentagt: and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of geomelTil,; real raks of return for each majoT asset class included in the Systems target 
asset allocation as of August 31, 2023 arc summarized below: 

Loog-tcr;n 
Taq_:ct l<~xpcckd C comlllTi,· 

Alloc11tio1, '1/q" nca l Rate of ltduru~•" 
(;fohal Equity 
!JSA 
Non-1./.S, Developed 
Eim:rgi,1g IY!afkcts 
Privulc E<.Jtlity 
Stnhlc V:ilnc 
Gov~rnmcnt Flonds 
Al>sul ur" °R<Jl ,wn 
S tahle Va lue 11edge 
.Ren! Return 

Em:rgy. N.i t1•l'~l Resources & lntrnstructurc 
Commo<lllh:s 
lti~k l'1ll'ity 
Ass"I Alloc.aCinn Leverage 
Cush 
Asset Allucution l...tw<::rng<:: 
l(ltlatioi1 1-:xpcclulion 
VolmiUiy Drng: .. M 

"folnl 

IH.0% 
13.0 
9 .0 

14.0 

16.0% 
0.0 
5.0 

15.0% 
6 ,0 

0.0 
H.0% 

2.0% 
-6.0 
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SANTA MARTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Note~ to the Financial Statements 

For Tbe Year Ended August 31 , 2024 

G. Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis 

The following table presents the Net Pension Liability of' the plan using the discount rate of 7 .00 
percent, and what the net pension liahili ty would be if il were calculated using a discount rate that 
is one percentage point lower (6.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the 
current rate. 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in 

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate 

(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%) 

Santa Maria's ISD's proportionilte 

share of the net pension liability: $ 4,652,160 $ 3,111,697 $ 1,830,802 

II. Pension Liabilities, l1ension E~pense, and l>efcrrcd Outllows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related tc, Pensions 

AL August 31, 2024, the District reported a liability of $3,111,697 for its proportionate share of the 
TRS's net pension liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State pension support provided 
to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its proporlionate share of the net pension 
liability_, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pensiorl liability that was 
associated with the District were us follows: 

District's Proportionate share of the collective net pension liability 

State's proportionate share that is associated with the District 

Total 

$3,111,697 
6,621,397 

$9,733,094 

The net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2022 and rolled forward to August 31 , 
2023 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was detet111ined hy 
,m actuarial valuation as of that dale. The employer's proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on the employer's contributions to the pension plan re]alive to the contributions or all 
employers to the plan for the period September 1, 2022 thru August 31 , 2023. 

At August 31 , 2023 the employer's proportion of the collective net pensi011 liability was 
0.0045300357% wh.ich was an increase (decrease) of (0.0004448497)% ti-om its proportion 
measured as of August 31, 2021. 
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SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

Changes In Assumptions and Rcnctits since the Prior Actuarial Valuntion 

The actuarial assumptions and methods ttre the same as used in the determination of the prior year's 
net pension liability. 

The Texas 2023 Legislature passed legislation Lhat provides a one-time stipend to certain retired 
teachers. The stipend was paid to rctii-ces beginning in September of 2023. The Legislature 
approp1iatecl funds to pay for this one-time stipend so there will be no impact on the net pension 
liability ofTRS. In addition, the Legislature also provided for a cost ofliving adjustment (COLA) 
to retirees which was approved during the November 2023 election which will be paid in January 
2024. Therefore, this contingent liability was not reflected as of August 31, 2023. 

The amount of pension expense recognized by the District in the reporting period was $1,396,199. 

For the year ended August 3], 2024, the District recognized pension expense of $1,396, I 99 ,md 
revenue or $999,774 for support provided by the State. 

At August 31, 2024, the District reported its proportionate share of the TRS's deicrrcd out.flows 
or resources and deforrecl inflows ofresources related to pension:-.; from the following sources: 

--· Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and acti.Jal economic experience $ 110,871 $ 37,679 

Cht1nB:P.S in actuarial assumetions 294,306 72,023 -
Difference between projected and actual fnves~ment earnings 452,827 -
Changes in proportion and difference betwe~n the employer's contribulions 

i:lnd the proportionate share of contributions 151,211 236,647 

Tot;il os August 31, 2024 measurement dale $ 1,009,215 $ 346,349 

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the mc;isurcment date 223,581 -

Total as __ Q_f fisc<1I year-end $ 1,232,796 $ 346,349 

The net amounts of the employer' s balances of defe1Ted outllows and inflow:-, of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended August 31: Pension Expense Amount 

2025 $ 108,556 

2026 91,741 

2027 383,119 

2028 91,938 

2029 (12,488} 

Thereafter -
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SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Staternents 

l•'or The Yem: Ended August 31, 2024 

J. DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPl,OYMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

A. Plan Description 

The District parlicipates in tho Texas Public School Retired Employees Group insurance Program 
(TRS-Carc). It is a muHiple-employer, cost-sharing, defined OPED plan with a special fonding 
situation. The '11lS-Care program was established in 1986 by tho Texas Legislature. 

The T.RS Board ofTrnstees adminislers the TRS-Care program and the related fund in accordance 
with Texas InsLrrancc Code Chapter 1575. The Board of TrlL',tees is granted the aulhority to 
establish basic and optional group insurance coverage for participants as well as to amend henefit 
terms as needed under Chapter 1575.052. Tho Board may adopt rules, plans, procedures and orders 
reasonably neces~mry to administer the program, including minimum benefits and financing 
standards. 

B. OPED Plan l1'iduciary Net Position 

Detail infonnation about the TRS-Care' s fiduciary net position is availab_le in the separately issue<l 
TRS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) that includes financial statements and 
reqnired supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at 
http://www.trs .texas.gov/Pages/about_publications.aspx; by writing to TRS at I 000 Red River 
Street, Austin, TX, 78701-2698; or by calling (512) 542-6592. 
C. Benefit~ Provided 

'IRS-Care provides health insurance coverage to retirees from public and charter schools, regional 
education service centers and other educational districts who are members of the TRS pension 
plan. Optional dependent coverage is available for an additional fee. 

Eligible non-Medicare retirees and their dependents may enroll in TRS-Care Standard, a high 
deductible health plan. Eligible Medicare retirees and their dependents may enroll in the TRS-Carc 
Medicare Advantage medical plan and the TRS-Care Medicare Rx prescdplion drug plan. To 
qualify for ms-Cmc coverage, a retiree must have at least 10 years or service credit in the TRS 
pension system. There arc no automatic post-employment benefil changes; including auto1rn1tic 
COLAs. 

The premium rates for retirees are reflected in the following table. 
TRS-Care Monthly for Retirees 

Retiree or Surviving Spouse 

Retiree and Spouse 

Retiree or Survivi11g Spouse and Children 

Retiree a11d Family 

46 

Medicare 

135 

529 

468 

1,020 

Non-Medicare 

$ 200 

689 

408 
999 



SANT A MARJA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes Lo Lhe Financial Stufoments 

For The Year Ended August 31 , 2024 

D. Contributions 

Contribution rates for the TRS-Carc plan are established in state statule by the Texas Legislalure, 
and there is no conlinuing obligation to provide benefits beyond each fiscal year. The TRS-Care 
plan is currently funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and is subject to change based on availahle 
funding. Funding for TRS-Care is provided by retiree premium contributions and contributions 
from the state, active employees, and participating employers based on active employee 
compensalion. The TRS Uoard. does not have the authority to sel or amend contribution rates. 

Texas Insurance Code, section 1575.202 establishes the state's contribution rate which is 1.25 
percent of the employee's salary. Section 1575.203 establishes the adivc employee's rale which 
is 0.65 percent of salary. Section 1575.204 establishes a public schuol contribution rate of not 
less than 0.25 percent or not more than 0.75 percent of the salaiy of each active employee of the 
employer. The actual public s1,;huol contribution rale is prescribed by Lhe Legislature in the 
General Appropriations Act, which is 0.75 percent of ea1,;h active employee's pay for fiscal year 
2023 . 

Contl'ihuiion Rates 

Active Ernployee 

Non-Employer Contributing Ei1tity (Sti~tc) 

Employers 

Federal/private Fu<lning remitted by Employers 

Santa Maria ISD's 2024 Employer Contributions 
Santa Maria ISD's 2024 Member Contributions 

Santa Maria ISD's 2023 NRCE On-Behalf Contributions 

2023 

0.65% 

1.25% 

0.75% 

1.25% 

2024 

0.65% 

1.25% 

0.75% 

1.25% 

$ 59,516 

$ 50,110 

$ 74,499 

In addition to Lhe employer contributions liste<l above, there is an additional surcharge all TRS 
employers are suhjed to (regardless ofwhetlwr they participate in the TRS Care OP Ell program). 
When hiring a TRS reliree, employers arc required to pay TRS-Care a monthly surcharge of $535 
per retiree. 

TRS-Care received supplemental appropriations from lhe State of Texas as the Non~Employcr 
Contributing Entity in the amount of $21.3 million in fis1,;,.l1 year 2023 provide<l by Rider 14 of 
the Senate Bill Gi\i\ of the 87th Legislalure. These amounts were re-appropriale<l amounts 
received by the po11si.on and TRS-Care funds in excess of the slale's actual obligation an<l then 
transferred lo TRS-Care 
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SANTA MARTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTIUCT 
Notes t.o the Financial Statements 

for The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

E. Actuarial Assumptions 

The actuarial valuation was perfr1m1cd as of August 31 , 2022. llpdate procedures wen:: used to roll 
frH·ward the total OPEB liability to August 31 , 2023. ·n,e aduarial valuation was determined using 
the fbllowing actuarial assumptions. 

The actuarial valuation of the OPEB plan offetcd through TRS-Carc is similar to the uctuarial 
valllation perfonne<l f'or the pension plan, except that the OPEB valuation is more complex. The 
demographic assumptions were updated based on the experience study perJonnc<l for TR.S for the 
period ending August 31 , 2021. The following assumptions and other inputs used Cor members of 
TRS-Care are based on un established pattern of practice and are identical to t11e assumptions used 
in lhe August 31, 2022 TRS pension aduarial valuation that was rolled forward to August 31 , 
2023: 

Rates of Mo11ality 
Rates of Retirement 
Rates of Termination 

Rates of [)jsability 
General lnfla.tion 
Wage Inflation 

The active mortality rates were based on PUl:3(2010), Amount-Weighted, Delow~Median Income, 
Teacher male and fomalc tables (with a two-year set forward for. males). The post-retirement 
mortality rates for healthy lives were based on the 2021 TRS of Texas Healthy Pensioner Mortality 
Tables. The rates were projected on a fully generational basis using the ultimate improvement 
rates from mort.alily projection scale MP-2021 Additional Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

Additional Actm,rial Methods and Assumptions: 

Valuatjo11 Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Inflation 

Single Discount Rnte 
Aging fnctors 

Expenses 

Snlary [ncreases rncluding Inflation 

Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes 

48 

August 31, 2022 rolled forward 

to August 31 , 2023 

Individual Entiy Age Normal 

2.30% 
4.13% a~ of August 3 1, 202 3 

Based cm plan specific experience 

Third-party administrative 
expenses related to the deli very 
or health care benefits arc 
included in the age-adjusted 
claims cost<:. 

2.95%; to 8.95% in1;luding inflation 

None 



SANT A MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 3 I, 2024 

Ii"'. Discount Rate. 

A single discmmt rate of 4.13 percent was used to measure the total OP Ell liability. Th.js was an 
increase of 0.22 percent in the disc0Lu1t rate since the previous year. 

Because the investments are held in cash there is no intention objective to advance fund the 
benefits, the Single Discount Rate is equal to the prevaili11g municipal bond rate. 

The source of the municipal bond rale is the Fidelity "20-year Municipal GO AA Index" as of 
August 31 , 2023, using the Fixed Income Markel Data/Yield Curve/Date MLmicipal bonds with 
20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds. 

G. l)jscount Rate Sensitivity Analysis 

The following schedule shows the impact of the Net OPEB Liability if the discount rate used was 1 
percentage point lower than and I percentage point higher than the discount rate that was used in measuring 
the Net OPEl11,iahility. 

I% Decrease in Curn;nt Single 1 % Increase in 

Discount Rate (1.13%) Discount Rate (4. 11%) Discount Rate (5. 13%) 

District's proportionate 

share of the Net OPER liability: $ 1,855,764 $ L,575,630 $ l,347,034 

H. OPRB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflow of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs 

At August 31. , 2024, the District reported a liabjhty of $1 ,575,630 for its proportionate share of the 
TR.S ' s Net OPER T ,iability. This liability refleds a reduction for State OPER support provided to 
the District.. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share or the Net OPEB 
liability, the related Stale support, and the total portion of the Net OPEB liability that was 
associated with the District were as follows: 

District's Proportionate share of the collective Net OPEB lic1bility 

State's proportionate share thc1t is associated with the District 

Total 

$ 1,575,630 

1,901,239 . 

The net OPF.R liability was measured as of August 31 > 2022 and rolled forwaru. to August 31, 2023 
and the total OPER liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was detem1ine<l by an ach1arial 
valuation as of that date. The employer's proportion or the net OPEll liabilily was based on the 
ctnployer's contributions lo the OPEB relative to the contributions of all employers to the plan for 
lhe period September 1, 2022 lhru August 31, 2023 

At August 31, 2023 the employer's proportion of the collective Net OPEB Liability was 
0.0071172101 %,, which was an increase (decreusc) of (0.0009287798)% from its proportion 
measured as of August 31, 2022. 
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SANT A MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOi, DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financh1l Statements 

Ji'or The Year Ended August 31 , 2024 

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates Sensitivity Analysis 

Thi.= fol1owi..ng schedule shows the impact of tJ1i.= Net OPEH Liability if a healthcare trend rate that 
is 1 % less than and 1 % greater than the health trend rates assumed. 

Current Hcallhcurc 

I% De~:rense Cost Trend Rate I% lnurcnse 

District's proportionate 

shuru of the Net OPEB liability: $ 1,297,4.52 $ 1;575,630 $ 1,933,506 

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation - The following were changes to the actunrial 
assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total OPEB liability ('l'OL) since the 
prjor measurement period: 

• The single discount rate changed from 3.91 percent as or August 31, 2022 to 4.13 percent 
as of August 31, 2023, accompanied by revised demographic and economic assumptions 
based on the TRS experience study. 

Change of Benefit Terms Since the Prior Measurement Date 
Then~ were no changes in benefit krms since the prior measurement date. 

The amount of OPEB expense recognized by the District in the reporting period was ($811,295). 

For the year ended August 31, 2024, the District recognized OPEU expense of ($8 l I ,295) and 
revenue of ($406,445) for support provided by the State. 

At August 31, 2024, the District rcp01ted its proportionate share or lhe TRS's dcfened outflow::; 
or resomces and delerretl inflows of resources related to post-employment benefits from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual economic experience $ 71,285 $ 1,325,594 

Changes in actuarial assumptions 215,062 964,800 

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 681 -
Changes in proportion and difference between the employer's contributions 

and the proportionate share of contributions 624,334 968,438 

Total as August 31, 2023 measurement date $ 91 t,362 $ 3,258,832 

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement date 59,516 . 
Total as offiscal year•end $ 970,878 $ 3,258,832 
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SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes lo the fimmcial Statements 

Por The Year Ended August 3 I, 2024 

The net amounts orthe employer's balances of' defe.11·ed outflows and inflows of resoun:es 
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year ended August 31: OPEB fxponsc Amount 

2025 $ (531,934) 

2026 (459,666) 

2027 (361,829) 

2028 (261,720) 

2029 (228,134) 

Thereafter (504,187) 

L. MEDICARE PART-D 

Meilicare oti Beltalf Payments. The Medicare Prescription Drug1 lmprovemenl, and 
Modernization Act of 2003, which was effective January 1, 2006, estahlishcd prescription drug 
coverage for Medicare bendfoiaries known as Medicare Part D. One or the provisions of 
Medicare Part D allows for the Texas Public School Retired Employee Group lnsurance 
Program (TRS-Cm·e) to receive retiree drug subsidy payments from the federal government to 
offset certain prest:ription drug expenditures for eligible TRS-Care participants. These on­
behalf payments must be recognized as equal revenues and expenditures/expenses by each 
tcporting entity. The on behalf payments for Santa Maria Jndep1mdcnt School District for 
2024, 2023 and 2022 were $38,199, $35,083, and $28,046 respectively. 

M. HRAL TH CARE COVERAGE 

During the year ended August 31, 2024, employees or the District were covered by health 
insurnnce plan (the Plan). The District paid premiums of $298 per month per employee to the 
Plan. Employees, al their option, a1..Llhodzcd payroll withholdings to pay premiums for 
dependents. All premiums were paid to a licensed insurer. The Plan was authmized hy Atikle 
3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was documented by contractual agreement. The contract 
he1wecn the District and lh~ licensed insurer is renewable Octoher 1, and tcnns of coverage 
and premium costs are incluc.lec.l in the contractual provisions. 
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SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

N. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Contingencies 

The District participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules or the grantor 
agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are su~jcct to audit and adjustment 
by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied with the mlcs 
and regulations governing the grants, refunds or any money received may be required and the 
collcctability of any related receivable may be impaired. fn the opinion of the District, tJ1ere 
are no significant contingenl liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations 
governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying 
basic llnancial statements for such contingencies. 

0. DEFERRED REVENUE 

Dcfcned revenue at year end consisted of the i<.lllowing: 
Special Debt 

General 
Fund 

Revenue 
Fund 

Service 
Fund Total 

Net Tax Revenue $ 120,611 $ $ 71,407 $ 192,018 

Total Deferred Revenue $ 120,611 $ $ 71,407 $ 192,018 

P. DUE FROM STATE AGENCIES 

The District pa1ticipates in a variety of federal and state programs from which it receives grants lo 
partially or fully finance certain activities. ln addition, the District receives entitlements from the 
State through the School Foundation and Per Capita Programs. Amounts due from federal and 
state governments as of August 31 , 2024, arc summarized below. All federal grants shown below 
are passed through the TEA and are 1:eporlcd on the comhined financial statements as Due from 
State Agencies. 

DUE 
f _ROM FUND 

General 
Special Revenue 

Total 

DUE 
TO FUND 

General 
Special Revenue 

STATE 
ENTITLEMENTS 
$ 678,428 

258,952 
937,380 

$ 

52 

FEPERAL 
GRANTS 

$ 
327,585 
327,585 

2,195 
$ 2,195 

TOTAL 
$ 678,428 

586,537 
1,264,965 

2,195 
$ 2,195 



SANTA MARTA INOEPEND:ENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

Q. REVENUE FROM LOCAL AND Il'lTERMRDIATE SOURCl~S 

During the cunent year, revenues from local and intermediate sources consisted of the following: 

D~bt Ca[!ital 
General Service Projects 

Fund Fund Fund Total 

Property Taxes $ 1,066,477 $ 1,178,456 $ $ 2,244,934 
Penalties, Interest and Other 

Tax-related Income 32,043 17,614 49,656 

Investment Income 66,682 8,127 10,286 85,095 

Food Sales 3,682 3,682 

Other 28,140 28,140 

Total $ 1,197,024 $ 1,204,197 $ 10,286 $ 2,411 ,507 

R. MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT-IIBAL TH CARE 

For fully insured districts/entities/risk pools, enter the total amount pai<l by the district for 
employee health care premiums as reported to TEA per Note L. 

a) Total District Premium paid tor health care 2023-2024 

b) Subtract any non~mcdical expenditures 

Lite Insurance 

Long" Term Disability 

c) 2023•2024 Maintenance of Effort 

$ 321,780 

$ 1,642 

$ 320,138 

S. DEFERRED OUTl'LOWS AND DF.FERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Governmental funds report deferred inflows in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered lo be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also dofcr 
rcvt>nuc recognition in connection with reso\Jtces that have bl;)erl received, but not yet earned. 

At the fund level financial statements, the District has the following deterred inflows of resources: 

Property Taxes, unavailable 
Total Exhibit C-1 

General Fund 
$ 120,611 
$ 120,611 

Debt Service 
$ 71,407 
$ 71,407 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows resources related to pensions is $1,232,796 and 
$346,349, respectively. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows resources related to other 
post-employment benefits is $970,878 and $3,258,832, respectively Sec related details of pension plan 
obligations in Note I and other post.•employment benefits in Note .I. 
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For The Y car Ended August 3 I, 2024 

Dcfct·red Loss on Refunding 2020/202 L 
Tutal 

T. GASB 63 

$ 
$ 

Beginning 
Ualance Additions 

10, 174 $ _;:... ____ _ 
10, 174 $ 

======= 

$ 
$ 

Reductions 
Ending 
Balance 

1,453 $ !1,721 
-'-~---l.--

1,453 $ 8,721 
===~== 

GASR 63 Financial Reporting or Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnt1ows of 
Resources, and Net Position provides financial reporting guidance for defon·ed outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows or resources. Deferred outl1ows ofresources are the consumption 
of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period and deforrcd inflows 
of resources arc the acquisition or n~t assets by the government that is applicable to a fi.1ture 
rnporting period. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources arc 
incorporated into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and that 
measure is renamed as net position, rather than net assets. 

U.GASD68 

GASR 68 establishes standards for accounting and financial reporting, but not funding or 
budgetary standards, for defined benefit pensions and defined contribution pensions provided to 
the employees of state and local government employers through pension plans that arc 
administered through trusts or equiv,1lent arrangements criteria as described in GASB 67. This 
statement replaces the requirements of GASR Statement 27, Accounting for Pensions by Stale and 
Local Governmental Employers. Statement No. 71 amends Statement No. 68 to require that, al 
transition, a government recognize a beginning outflow of resources for its pension contributions, 
ff any, made subsequent lo lhti measurement date or the beginning pension liability 

V. GASB 87 

The District implemented GASR 87 for reporting Jeases during the reporting period. A right-to­
use lease is c.lefincd as a contract tha.t conveys control of another entity' s nonfirnrncial asset as 
specified in the contract for a period of Hme in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. To be 
accounted for as a lease, the lease mustmeel the definition ofa "longterm" lease provided in GASB 
87 and must meet the capitalization level set by the Board. The right-Lo-use lease liability is 
reported in the govemment-widc statements. The lease liability is calculated as the present value 
or the reasonably ce11ain expected payments to be made over the tenn of the lease and the interest 
included in the lease payment is recorded as an expense. 

With GASB 87, the initial measure or a new right-to-use lease arrangement is reported in 
government rund types as an other :financial sonrcc during the current period. Monthly payments 
arc reported as p1incipal and interest payments dllring the reporting period of the fund level 
statements. 
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The right-to-use lease assel cupitalization level is detem1ined by the Doard of Trustees. The term 
or the lease must be the noncancdahlc period during wrnch the District has the right to use the 
tangible assets of another entity plus any periods in which either the lessee or the lessor has lhe 
sole option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain the option will he exercised, plus any 
periods in which either the lessee or the lessor has the :sole option to terminate the lease if it is 
lcasonably certain the option will not be exercised by thal party and must not meet the definition 
of a short~tenn lease under GASB 87. If the lease is in a governmental fund, the foll amount of the 
lease asset will be reported as an expenditure in the fund level statements the year the agreement 
is made. 

W. GASB96 

The District implemented GASB 96 for rcpo1ting subscription-based information technology 
arrangements (SBITAs) during this rcpmting period. A SBITA is dcfmed as a contract that 
conveys control over .mother entity's TT soil ware as specified in the contract for a period of time 
in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. To be accounted for as a SillTA, it must meet the 
definition of a "long-term" SBlTA provided in GASB 96. The right-to-use SBlTA liability is 
reported iu the government-wide statements. The SBITA liability is cakulatec.l as the present value 
of the reasonably certain expected payments made over the term of the contract and the interest 
included in the SBTT A payments is recorded us an expense. There were no SBJTAs material to 
the financial statements that were recorded during the year audited. 

X. OTJIBR RESOURCES 

The District received $1 , 127,755 from Rayos Del Sol Solar Project, LLC as hold harmless 
payments lo offset the loss of revenue due to the Value Limitation applied. This item has been 
recorded as other resources in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
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SANT A MARIA INDEPRNDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial St1tements 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2024 

Y. CHANGES WITHIN THE FINANICAL REPORTING ENTITY/ERROR 
CORRECTION 

for the current year, the District reported a change in its financial reporting entity. Tht: District 
previously reported the Capital Projects Fund as a majm· governmental fund. In the prior year, that 
classification was required based on quantitative factors . However, that threshold was met in the 
current year, and management concluded that the fund was significant enough to merit pre~entation 
as a non-major fund for qualitative purposed. Thu~, the Capital Projects Fund was reclassified to 
a non-major fond in the current yeaL 

The District required balance sheet adjustments to clear uncollectible receivables and recognize 
deposit activity related to the previous fiscal year. This error understated the fund balances of the 
General fund, Debt Service flmd and Capital Projects fund by ($227,440), $320,948, and $51,858 
respectively, and the net position of governmental activities in the govemment-wide statements. 

8/31/2023 Change 
As Previously Within Financial Error 8/31/2024 

Re~rted Re122rting Entity Correction As Restated 

Net Position: Government-Wide Stnte111ents 
Govermncntul Activities $ 42943,321 $ $ 145c166 $ 5,088!687 

Total Primary Government 4,943,321 145J66 5,088,687 

Fund Balances: Governmental Funds 
Major Ftmds 
General Fund $ 3,397,105 (227,440) 3,169,665 

Debt Service Fund 19,684 320,948 340,632 

Capital Pr~jects Fund 573,403 (573,403) 

Nonmajor FW1ds 111J82 573!403 51,858 736.543 

Total Governmental Funds $ 4!_101,474 $ $ 145,366 $ 4,246,840 

Z. EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Organization hus evaluated subsequent events through January 27, 2025, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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EXHIBIT<~! 
SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOLDJS"l'HICI' 

SCHEDULE OF RL::VENUl·S, 1-'.:XT'ENDTI'URES, AND Cl IA NC'£S IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTLIAL-(,F\NFJUL FUND 
FOR THE YEARfiNDRD Al JOUST 31, 2024 

Dr1l;1 
Actual Amuunts V,1rinncc With 

Cnntrol D11t1sctcd Amounts 
(Gi\i\P RASIS) l'inal l:ludb>el 

Positive 01 
Cudcs Original Fi11al {Nce,•t ivc) 

REVENUES: 
570() Tniul Local and lntcrmcdintc Sources $ 1,190,000 $ 1, 190.000 $ 1,197,024 $ ·1.014 

5800 Slate Pl'08J'a!ll R~vcnucs 7 ,222 ,865 7,227.,K(,5 7,003,015 (21 <J ,790) 

5900 Feeler~] Program Revenues 966,091 %6,0'Jl 843,821 (122 ,270) 

5020 Total Rovcn111,,-s 9,378,95(, ').J'/8,<)56 9.04J ,no (335,036) 

l:lXt•~N IJlTURES: 
Cur;cnl: 

0011 Instruct ion 4,2(,9,707 '1,269,707 4,977 ,202 ( 707,4')~ J 
ouu liwlrnct icmnl Resources nnd Media So>rv ices 8, IU0 8,IV0 11, 145 3,955 

0013 CuiTii.;uh1111 and lnsiructional Stuff Dev~lup111c11I 9,900 9,')00 6 ,622 , ,27!< 

007.l Instructional L~adcrnhip 101,124 )46,124 181,682 (35,558 ) 

0023 &:huul Lt=adt11sh ip 40c,, s ,19 406,549 114:'i,(,4(, (39,097) 

003 1 Guidan,,c, Cowiscling, und Llvuluatiun Services 138,496 13R ,4% l 50,5M6 (12,090) 

003'.\ Health Services 81.429 85 ,22') S0.005 5,22'1 

0034 Student ( l'upil) Tru11spu1t~tion J ,10, 124 3 l 9,424 475.361 (i55 ,'JJ7 ) 

0035 Food Services 712,5')1 '/11.591 70.3,115') 8."/32 

0036 Ext rn,,11rric11lar Activities 4·10,F26 56 1,72(, <,26,628 {64,902) 

004 1 C]cncr~I Administration 783.182 ~72,1 K2 l ,056,843 {R~ ,Ct6 I) 

005) hu;ilitics M.ii11tet1.1nce ,111d Operat ion~ 1.09/4 ,K'JO l,Q94,S90 l ,'217 ,KKM ( 122,998) 

0052 Security and Monitoring Services 1'>7,'287 197,287 l(,'),314 2"/,973 

0053 Oat~ Proccs.smg ~rvices I 57.11 1 157,61 I 184,617. {27,00 1) 

0()(,) Comn1w1ity Setvk,cs 54 ,240 .'.>4,240 51/17') .'.>61 

Ucbt Scrvkc: 

007 1 Princ1p11l on Long-Term Liubilities 90,000 35,0()() 49,953 ( 14.')51) 

0072 Interest 011 Lung-T erm Liabilit ics 6.9 13 (6,')13 ) 

Capital Outlay ; 
0081 F~cilitics Acquisition nnd Construcliun 255,500 155,50[) 165,1)61 (J0,116!) 

l11terguvernmental: 
00')3 l'aymet1ls tu fis,.,:,1 A[i~nt/Mcmhcr D1~1ncts of S.'iA 170,000 170,000 I 1'2 ,332 57,66M 

0099 Other lntr.rgovcrnmcntul Charges 36,000 57,000 56;/34 266 

60,0 Tot al Exp end it urcs 9,37R,956 \J ,55 1,556 10,725 ,%5 {1,17~ ,40')) 

11 00 Exe~, (Dcfici~11<JY) or Revenues Over (llnder) (172,600) ( I ,(,K'2,0~5) (1 ,509,445) 
Tl~ p 1!11(1it urcs 

OTJ-lF:R FlNANCING SOURCES (USES); 
71) I 3 R1ght-tu-U,;c Lcusc and S[llT II Proceed<; 7.00,797 200,7'>7 

7>.J 15 TrunsforS 111 172,600 (I 72,601J) 

7949 Other Jksnurccs 1, Ll7,755 1,1 27 ,755 

7()H0 Total Other Fi.i1an<~ing Sources (llses) 172,6tJ0 1,3?.8,55'2 l , 155,952 

i200 Net Chimg.c in 'Fund nalm11:es (353,493) (353,493) 

0 100 Fund ilufanci, - Seplernber 1 (lkginninr) j,397.105 3,3'>7,105 3,39'1,105 

1300 Atljustmcnts and Rcstatcrncnis (?.27,440) (227,440) 

3000 Fund 1:1:ihmcc - Aug,usl '.1 1 (Ending) $ l ,39'/, l 05 $ 3,397,1115 $ 2,X16 ,l '/2 $ (580,933 ) -- =-
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SANTA MARli\ INDEl'l·NDFNT SCHOOLDlSTRICI' 

SCIIFrn n .E OF Tl-IE DISTRICT'S PROl'OlffIONA TE SHARI•: (>I' Tl IF. NET PENSION LIA Bl I .ITV 

:IJ.:'ACI.IF.R RETIREMENT SYS'Jl-:M OF TEXAS 

FOR THE YEAH ENI >ED AUGUST 31. 2024 

District's l'ropnrtion nflhe Net Pension Liability (A~~ct) 

District's l'rnpor1.ionale Shat'e of Net Pension Liability (A~~d) 

Slate's l'rnportion11lc Share nftl11! Nd Pension Liability (Asset) A~so~i;,Led with 

the DislTid 

Total 

$ 

FY202,1 
Plan Year 2023 

0.004530036% 

J ,111 ,697 

6,62 1,397 

9,n:i.09,1 

$ 

$ 

J;Y2023 
Plan Year 2022 

0,00197411115% 

2,95\1162 

5,742,818 

8,696,280 

$ 

$ 

DisLrid's Covered Payroll 7,967,682 $ 7,273,889 $ 

Dfalricl's Propo1tionate Share of the. Nel Pensintt Liahilily (/\~set) as a 
Pel'centagc or ii s C:nvcn:d Puy roll 

Phm Fiduciury Net Position as a l'crccnl~1gp of lhc: Tnlal Pensiun Liability 

39.05% 

73.15% 

40.60% 

75.62% 

FY2022 
Plan Year 2021 

0.004887466% 

1,244,665 

2,341,7 1<) 

J ,586,'.llM 

19.00% 

M8.79o/o 

Nule: G/\S8 Codifimt ion, Vol. }., P20. I RJ requi1·es lhal the ioformaLi(ln on lhis schedule b,: d,1L11 from lhc period cor1·csponding; with I he 
11criods covcrL'<l •is nl"lhc mi:a.~u,·emcnt dates of Augi,st '.H , 202:'l rm· ye..'li' 2024, /\111:')1st] I, 2022 fru• y eru· 2023. A ug11sL :H , 202 1 for yi:ar 
202'.1., A uiusl '.l 1, 2020 for year 2021 1 August 3 I, 2019 for year 2020, August 31, 20 Pl for year 2019, /\ugi.1sl 31 , 20 17 li1r year 2018, 
August 31, 2016 for year ?,0)7, Augµsl JI, 2015 tor year 2016 m11l A ui,1sl 31 , 2014 for year 20 15. 
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EXH.l.BITG-2 

FY 2021 FY2020 FY2019 FY2018 FY2017 H2016 FY2015 

Plan Year 2020 Ph:m Year 2019 l'lan Year 20 IR Plan Ycar2017 Plan Yt:ar 2016 J'\an Year20\5 Plan Year 2014 

0.00'137260R% 0.004474675% O.OOll645704% 0.005789164% 0.006931679% 0.00607 1.5% 0.004028% 

$ 2,34 l,8RO $ 2,326,076 $ 2,;'W/, 108 $ l,851.D63 $ 2,6 19,379 $ 2,1'16, 194 $ 1,075,935 

4,808,036 4,.~02,511 4,561.5[6 2,?Rl,615 3.6?.7,0'l9 3,672.517 2,942,014 

$ 7.149,916 $ 6, K2R,587 $ 7.118,624 $ 4,632,678 $ 6,2'16,478 .$ 5,818,711 $ 4,017,949 
~ 

$ 6.215.835 $ 5,767,960 $ 5,443,2j2 $ 5,7RJ, 140 $ 6,207.,071 $ 5,!150.793 $ 5,•176. 195 

37.68% 40.'.Ho/n 46.98% 32.01% 42.23% 36.68% 19.65% 

75.54% 75.?.A¾ 73.74% 82.17% 78.00% 7R.43% 83.25% 
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Contrnd1mlly Required Contribution 

SANTA MARlA INDFPENDENT SCI .1001 . DJ STRICT 

SCl lliDUI ,E OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIJJUTfONS FOR PENS IONS 

TEJ\CHERRETIRl·MIWT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR Tl II:', YEAR ENDED A uuus-r 11, 2024 

2024 

Contribution in Kchilion to the Co11tractually Required Conlrib11ti<1n 

223,581 $ 

(27.J,581) 

Contrihutk>11 Deliciency (Excess) 
s 

District's Covt:rl!t! Payroll 7,709,155 $ 

Contributions as a l'cn.:cntll!:~ of Covi=ra l Pay roll 

2023 

212,958 $ 

(212,958) 

7,060,651 S 

3.02% 

2022 

229,1174 

(229,474) 

7,273.889 

'.U5% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P20. I 83 l'cquircs that the data in this ,d,edule be pn.:s1.-nte<l as of thi:: Distt·ict's respective /lsci,1 ycm,; it~ 

opposed to the time periods covered by the measurement dales cmling Augpst 31 of the pr1.-c1,.~li11g year. 
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F:XHlBIT G-3 

2021 2020 2019 201 8 2017 2Ul6 2015 

$ 214.779 $ 11!2,41!2 $ 157,661 $ 150,923 s 174,:'135 $ 225,375 $ 179,685 

(2 14,779) ( 187,,482) ( 157,661) (150,9),3) (1 74,535) (225,375) (179,685) 

$ - $ . $ - $ • $ - $ - $ 
,. ;::::::::::::;::·- - _ i;: ·.....--..::-.: --== ::::="""~ -·--

$ 6.550,301 $ 6,?. l~,835 $ 5,767,960 $ .S,'1!13,232 $ 5,783, 140 $ 6,202,07 1 $ 5,8,0,79:l 

3.28% 2.94% 2.73% 2.77% 3.02% 3.63% 3.07% 
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SANTA MARIA INDEl'ENl>EN'J' SCI IOOLDISTIUCI' 

SCI IFDlJI ,f. OF THE DISTRICT'S !'RO!'OiffJONA TE SHARE OF Tl Jn NET OPEB LIABILITY 

TEA.Cl WR RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR THE YEAR 1.'NDl·l) /\ lJCIJST 3 L 2024 

District's Proportion oflhc Net Liability (Asset) for Other Post.employment 

Bcncfils 

District's Proportionate Shiirc nl"Ni;:t orrm Liability (Asset) 

State's l'roport.ionalc Share ofthe Net 01' EB Liability (As~d) Associated with the 
Dislrid 

Total 

District's Covered l'uyroll 

District's Proporlionatt: Share oflhc Net Ol'El:I Li11bility (Assi:1) as a l'crccntagc of 
il~ Cov~red Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net l'o~ilion as il Percenta~ of the Total OPEH I .iahility 

$ 

$ 

FY2024 
Plan Year 2023 

0.00711721% 

tJn,6'.lO 

1,901,239 

'.l,476,869 
~ 

$ 7,%7,682 

19.78% 

14.94% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

FY202..1 
!'Ian Year 2022 

0.00804599% 

1,926.532 

2,350,067 

4.276,599 

7,:m,889 

26.49% 

11.52% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

FY2022 
Plan Year 2021 

O.OOS25J426% 

3, 18'.l,7 15 

4.265,469 

7,449, I 84 

6,550,301 

48.60% 

6.18% 

Note: GASB Codific:11.ion, Vol. 2, P50.231! slates that the infonnuilon mi this sdiedule shoulrJ be dcl~T1t\ined o.~ orthc mcasurcmcnL date. 
The amounts for FY 2024 art: for the me..,surcment dale of August J I, 2023, The amo11n1s for fY 2023 are for the measurement dull! of 
Au1.111~I 31, 2022. The amounts rcpon r.d for FY 7.022 ilrt: fell' mcasu1·emcnl rlaJc Augµst '.l I, 2021. The i1mounts rcporl.L~l for FY 2021 are 
for the measurcmcnl d~lc nr A11g11sl 3 1, 2020. The amounts for i--Y ?.020 urc for Lhe measurement d11lc August '.l l , 2019. The amounts for 
FY 20 L9 llJC for Lhc Hicasutement date /\ug,ust 31, 201 R. The arnounts for FY 2018 urc h1l~ed on Lht: /\ugusl 31, 201 7 mc,15urcmcnl dale. 

Thi~ sd1a.lule shows only the years lbr whid, this inlurniation is avaih1blc. Addilim1ul i,iformation will be 11ddcd until 10 yeill's of data al'e 

available and reported. 
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EXI IIBIT 0-4 

FY202 1 l-'Y2020 FY2019 FY2018 
Plan Year 2020 Plan Year 2019 Plan Year 2018 Plan Year 2017 

0.007262096¾ 0.006837032% 0.006604846% 0.00R59J942% 

$ 2,760,650 $ 3,23'.l,3 15 $ 3,297,860 $ 3,737, I R3 

:,.709,652 4,296,354 4,611,'.?.0J 4,274.812 

$ 6,470.302 $ 7,519,669 $ 7,909,061 $ RJ II 1,995 
.. , :::,-· • 

$ 6.215,835 $ 5,167,960 $ 5.44'3,232 $ -~,7RJ, l40 

M.4 1% 56.06% 60 .. ~9% 64.62% 

11.99% 2.66% 1.57% 0.9 1% 
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SANT/\ MARIA lNUFPENDF.NT SCHOOLD!SlRICT 

SCIJEl>lJLF.OF D1STR1CT'S CONl'IHHUTJONS FOROTI-JER l'OSTEMPLOYMENT BENr•'.l'l'l'S (OPER) 

·t}/\CI-IER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR Tl LE YEA.I{ ENDED A UGUS'J' 31, 2024 

2024 2023 2022 

Contracl uruly Required Co11tiibution 59,516 $ 57,678 $ 61,373 

Conlrihulion in Reial ion lo lhe;, Conlraclually Required Contribl1lion (59,516) (57,678) (ti I ,'.173) 

Contribution Deli~ie11cy (Excess) 
- $ . $ 

District's Covered P11y1·01l $ 7,709,15 5 $ 7,060,651 $ 7,273,889 

Conlrihuticins as a l'crccnta~ of Covm!d Pay roll 0.77% 0.87.% 

Nole: GA.Sn Codification, Vol. 2, PSO.nR requi,•es that the data in this sche<lull.l he presented HS nfth.c Distl"ict's respective fiscal yci1rs as 
opposed to the time period.~ covcrL"ll hy the measut•emcnl dates ending i\ug,usl 31 orthc preceding yc.n-. 

lnlbrmul ion in this schedule should be providcd only fo1· the yi::ru·s where d ill" i~ uvuilable. Eventually IO ye,rn; of duta should be prescnlcd. 
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EXI IIBIT G-5 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

$ 65,589 $ 56,725 $ 48.568 $ ,i5,'.ll7 

(65,589) (56,725) ('1R,'i68) (45,317) 

$ - $ - $ . $ 
·.:..r4-= ,., -.-z 

$ 6,550,30) $ 6,215,835 $ S,767,960 $ 5.443,232 

LOO% 0.91% 0.114% 0.113% 
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COMBINING· AND OTHER STATEMENTS 



SJ\NTJ\ MARIA LNllFJ'ENDENT SCHOOLIJISTRTCT 
COMUINING BJ\1..t\NCE Sl 11::1-'.I' 

NONMJ\.lOR CiOVE.RNM!~NTJ\.L FUNDS 
.,\ UGUST 31, 2024 

- - ---------------- - -

Uala 

CorHrol 

ASSETS 

11111 C.ash and Cash Equivalents 
1120 lnve:llments - Cu1Te11! 

l/440 Due from O!her Governments 
12c,o DuefromOLherFunds 

1290 Olhcr Receivables 
1410 Prepayments 

lOOO Total Assets 

LIABlUITF.S 
2 11 o Accounts Payable 
2110 Due to Other Funds 
21 MO Due lo Other Gwcmmcnls 

2000 Total Liabilities 

rUND BA I .A NCFB 

Nonspendahlc rum! Balance: 

3430 Prepaid Items 
Restricted Fund fialance: 

Jit.'10 Federal or Stale Funds 011111. Restriction 

., ,110 Capitul Projects 

3000 l'otnl Fund Balances 

4000 Tolul Liabilities and Fund Balances 

).11 212 

hSf.A f. A ESEA Title I 

lnip1·ovinr, Port C 
Dasie l'ro11am Migrant 

$ 

$ 

$ 

66 

(27,082)$ 

27,082 

(13,538) $ 

13,538 

$ 

- $ $ 
c-====== 

242 

Suirrmet 

1'ccding 
Pro1:rmn 

5,661 $ 

•· - .~ 

5.661 

5,661 

5,661 $ 

255 

ESEA U,A 
Training an<l 

Recl'lliting 

(3,917) 

3,917 

===== 



WO IJBlT H- 1 (Cont'd) 

263 265 266 270 274 277 279 281 

Title Ill, /\. Tille lV, 11 ESSER I - ESEA V, 11,2 GE/\R Ul' Comn11virus ESSER III -r.ssm n 
English umi;, Comn1unity Emergency Sd1 llund & Low Rdieffllnd TCI...AS CRRSA Act 

Ac,p1bili111l Leaming Jtc!icf Fund Income CARES ARP Ac.:l Supplemental 

$ 114 $ (52,736) $ 46,4:l? $ - $ 15,262 $ (95,800) $ . $ (121,630) 

52,736 (15,262) 95,800 121 ,630 

-------- - --------~ -~ 
$ 114 $ - $ 46.437 $ - $ - $ 

===--====== 

$ - $ " $ $ - . • $ - $ $ 

114 46,437 

____ I_l_4 ________ 4_6~,4_3_7 _______________________ _ _ 

114 $ 46,437 $ - $ • $ - $ 
===""""'"""= 
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Dula 

Cl1111 rol 

Codes 

ASSErS 

SA NT/\ MA RIA INDEPl'NDEN'I' SCI IOOL DJ STRJCI" 
COMBINL"lU BA l .A NCE SHEET 

NONM A.IOI~ fiOVERNM ENTA L FUNI )S 
/\ lJGUST 31. 2024 

282 2fl.7 
ESSER Ill Project R isc 

/\JU' Acl Grom 

Fund 

289 331 

Other f ederal SSA - Career 
Spcdnl & T~chnical -

Rcvi:nuc Punds Hasic Uran! 

1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
11 20 lnvestmcnls - Current 

$ 26 $ 41,608 $ (28,099) $ 

1240 I )ue from Other Governments 
12c,o Due from O!her Furn.ls 
12•,o Olhcr Re1,;civables 
141 0 Prepayments 

1000 Tot:al Assets 

LIABlLITIES 
2 110 Accounts Payablc 
2 170 Due to Other Fun<ls 
2180 Due t.o Olher Gwemments 

:woo Total f,iahilitics 

FUND BAlANCl::S 

Nonspendablc Fund Balance: 
H .lO Prepaid Hems 

Resllicled Fund Balance: 
3~50 Federal or State Fun<ls Grnnl Rcstt·iction 
H70 Capital ProjCl:ts 

JOOQ rot:al Fund Balances 

4000 Tulnl Liabi lities and Fund Balances 

$ 

$ 

68 

28,144 

RR9 

26 $ 42,497 $ 45 $ 
=---- 1!:1:-:""' -~= 

- $ $ - $ 

26 2.124 45 

26 2,124 45 

40,373 

40,373 -----

26 $ 42,497 $ 45 $ 
===== 



EXHIBIT H-1 

379 410 427 '12') Total 699 Total 

Other Fa.leral State Jlff Other Slate Nonm11jor Capital Nonmitjor 

SSA Special lmln1ulic.m11I G1·il11l Special Spct:iul Projects Governmental 

Revenue Funds Mul.erials Fund Revenue Fund~ Rcv~nue funds fund fuuds 

$ . $ 1 R,697 $ (17,488) $ (2'1 1.114) $ (473,599) $ 17,()82 $ (456,517) 
23,R42 23.842 

17,488 241,464 586,537 586,537 
204,096 204,096 

889 889 
LR.836 18.,K\6 

$ - $ 18,697 $ - $ 350 $ 113,827 $ 263,856 $ 377.683 

$ - $ - $ . $ - $ - $ 34,808 $ 34,808 
1,000 1,000 

2 , JI):') 2,1~)5 

2,195 35,808 38,CXH 

JR.R36 18,836 

18,697 350 111 ,612 111,631 
209,2 12 209,212 

18,697 350 l 11.632 228,048 339,680_ 

$ - $ 18,697 $ - $ 350 $ 113.827 $ 263,856 $ 377,683 
• .!if i... - -------::~ . 
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SANTA MARIA JNJJl'l'HNDENT SCHOOLDJSll{ICJ' 
COMBINING STATEMENT OJ: REVRNUF.S, EXPENDlTURF.S AND CHANGES IN 

1,.UNr> IIALANCF."- NONMAJOR CiC)Vl·:RNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEARl:NDEI> AlJntJST 31. 2024 

D,)rn 

Control 

Codes 

REVENl JES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
~800 Stale l'rni;:mm Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Rcvcnul,s 

so20 Total Jh:venues 

EXl'l::NI >ITURF.'i: 
Current: 

00 1 1 Ins tru1;tio11 
00 12 Instructional Resources and Media Sl'.rVices 

oo 1, Cun'icuium and Inslniclionul Slaff Development 
0021 fnslrudional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
003 1 (iuidancc, Counseling, and Evuluution Servlces 
0012 Social Work Scrvi1,;cs 
0033 l-lcallh Setvi(:es 

0035 Food Seivices 
0052 Security and Monitodng Scrvil:i:.s 

ooti I Community Servii.:es 
Capital Outlay: 

0081 Facilities Ac4uisilion uml Conslmi.:lion 

$ 

211 212 

!:iSEA l,A ESE/\ Title I 

lrnprovi11~ !'art C 

nasic Program Migranl 

. $ -

297,:H9 57,020 

297,349 57,0>.0 

9!,392 570 
50.J,10 

113,119 1 

56.450 

41,926 

242 

Sun11m:r 

Ft:t:tlin!-1 

Program 

$ . 

23, t.50 

23,150 

23,150 

255 

ESE/\ II.A 

Training and 
Rc1.i-uili111; 

$ 

33.571 

33,571 

33.571 

60.'lO Tot;d l:~~pdnditures _ _ _ 29_7~,3_4_9 ___ 5_7-'--,0_2_0 ·-- 23, t 5~ __ _ _ 3_3_.5_7_1 

1200 Net Change in Fund B1ilun1;1J 

(llOO Fund Balance - Sept, I (Beginning), as Prcviou~ ly Reported 
1300 Adjustments and Restatements 

Fund Baluncc - Sept. I, ,1s l{esLated and Adjusted 

J000 Fund Ba.lance- August 31 (F11ding) 

70 

5,661 

S,661 

5,661 $ 
===== 



263 

Tith: 111, A 

English Lang. 
A(:quisilinn 

$ - $ 

2,441 

2,441 

2,44 1 

2,441 

IJII 

114 

$ 114$ 

265 

Title IV, H 

Co111rnu11ily 
Lem11illf!, 

-

484,626 

'184 ,626 

398,876 

4,011 
80,207 

1,,532 

'18-1,626 

-

266 

FSSER I -

P.rnet~ncy Sch 
Relief fund 

$ $ 

46,437 

46.4'.!7 

$ 46,437 $ 

270 

ESEA V, U,2 

Rural &J..ow 
lncomt: 

-

16,347 

16,347 

16,347 

16,3'17 

s 

$ 

7.74 
GFAR lJP 

-
85,9"17 

85,977 

l!l ,974 

tl,003 

!15_977 

EXllll3IT H-2 (Cont'd) 

277 'J.79 2!11 

Coronavirns F.SSTIR 111 ESSER ll 

Relief f.'urid TCLi\S CR.RSA Ad 
CARES ARl' Act Supplemt:ulul 

$ - $ - $ 

- $ 
--.,:., ===========-==========='"'"- =========== 
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Cont.ml 

Codes 

RF.VFNlJES: 

SA Nl'A MARIA lNDF.PENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBININU STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXl-'l::NDITURE.~ AND CHANGl·S IN 

FUND rlJ\ LANCES - NONM A JOR OOVERNMENTA f . FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR liNI WI> J\ lJGl:JST 31, 2024 

282 287 289 
ESSER JJ1 r n)jcct Rise Ot hc.:r ft,dt,rul 

ARP Act Gn1nl. Special 

rund Revenue bind~ 

5700 Total Local and lnter,nediatc Sources 

33[ 

SSA - Career 
& Tochnic11I -

fiusii; Graul 

5800 Stule J'rogram Revenues 
5900 J,"ederal Program Revenues ___ ?..:..20...:,_'IO_O ___________ S_7..:..,3c...65 ____ _ 

5020 Total Hevenues 220,400 57,365 
-----

EXPENI >lTl JRF.i::: 

Currcnl: 
001 1 lnstrnction 150,962 15.027 

oo 12 Instructional Resources and Mcdi,1 Sc1v ices 
oo l 3 Curriculum and lnslrnct.ional Staff.L>evelopmcnt 
0021 lnstruclional Leade1·ship 
0023 S~hool 1.eadcrship 
OOJ I Guidance, Counseling, and Ev,1luution Services 69,438 
oon Social Work Services 
0033 1-lcalth Scrvii.;es 42.338 

oo:;'.> food Services 
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 
oor, 1 C.,ommunily Services 

Capital Outlay: 
0081 Fucililics Acquisilion und Con~ll\l~tion 

c,030 Tolul Expendit11res _ __ 220,400 ______ __ _ _ 57_._36_5 ______ _ 

1200 Net Change in Fund Bal<1n1.:c 

0 100 Fund Balance - Sept. l (Beginning), as Previously Reported 
1 JOO Adjustinents and Rcstalcmcnls 

Fund Balancu - Sept. l. as Res t.nted and A.djustetl 

3000 Fund Ba1am:e - August 31 (Ending) $ 

72 

,lfl,'.17) 

40,37~ 
------------ s 40,373 $ $ 



EXIIIBIT 1-1-2 

379 410 427 ,17.9 Total 699 Total 

Other lfcdcrnl State JET Other State Nonmiuor Capital Nonnwior 

SSA Sp!Xial i nstructional Gran l Special Special Projects Oovl:ni1nti1lal 

Revenue Funds Muli:rial~ Fund Revenue F1md!i Revenue funds l'und Funds 

$ . $ - $ - $ - $ . $ 10,286 $ I0.286 

;;,101 3 16,537 1, 197,:;5 1 1,517,589 l ,517,589 

1,278,2.46 1.278,J.~(i 

3,701 3 16,537 l , 197,351 2,795,ins 10,286 2,806, 121 

3.701 316,537 504,478 1.615,876 l,615,R76 

50.140 50.140 

1•17.,R32 l50J!46 150,846 

287,825 1181 ,923 481 ,923 

14,023 14,023 14,02'.{ 

69.438 69_.438 

.56,'1 50 56.450 

42,3'.18 42,338 

23,150 2.3,150 

247.843 2,11,M3 H7,R4J 

43,45R 43,458 

407,499 407,'1'>9 

3,10 l 3 16,537 1,1 97,001 2,795,485 407,499 3,202.984 ------ --
350 ;150 (397,213) p96,R(i3) 

18.697 111,282 111,282 

62.5,261 625,26 1 

18.697 11 t ,2R?. 625,261 736,5113 

$ - $ 18,697 $ - $ 350 $ 111,6'.12 $ 228,048 $ 339,680 
- e..-;:=== ~ -= 
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SANTA MARJA INDEl'HNtmNT SCHOOL DISTRlCI" 
COMBINING STATl..:M liNT OF flDllCIARYNl..::l l'OSl'fTON 

Cl JSTODIA L FUNDS 

ASSF.TS 
Cash and Cash l:q11iv1dt:nls 
Due from OLhcr rumls 

Tnt>1l Assets 

l.lAn!LITIES 
l'ayroll Deductions aud Withholdings l'ay:•1blc 
Out: Lo Other Funds 

Tola! Liabilities 

NET l'OSlTTON 

Restricted for Other l'urpo~c~ 

Total Net l'osilit111 

AUGUST 31, 2024 

863 

Pnymll 

Adivily 

Fund 

$ 302,420 

302,420 

142,676 
159,744 

302.420 

$ 

74 

R6<1 

Finance 

Clcarinr, Acct 

Fund 

$ 70,600 

70,600 

70,600 

70,600 

EXHIBITH-3 

865 

Cusln<lial Total 

Fund Student C11s1odial 

Activity Aoct runds 

,'), 40,5118 $ 413,608 

l0,573 l0,.57'.l 

5 1, 16 1 424, 1111 

142,676 

500 230.844 

500 373,520 

50.(16) 50,(i(i] 

50,661 $ :'i0,661 



SANTA MARIA lNDEPENDENT SCHOOL !llSTRICT 

COMHININGSTATFMF'.NT OF CHANUES IN VIDUCIARYNEf POSITION 
CUSTODIA I . FONDS 

FOR THE YEAR hNDED A lJGUST 31, 2024 

ADDITIONS: 

Olher 'I .ocal Revenue 

Tola I Additions 

I )I ·:r>UCTIONS: 

Payment To Others 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net l'osition 

Net Posit.ion - September I (Beginning) 

$ 

863 
Payroll 

Activity 
Fund 

!1(,4 

liinll!l~'C 

Cl~uri11g A eel 

Fund 

$ 

R65 

Custodial 

Fund St ndcnl 

Activity Acct 

$ 58,413 
------

58,4 lJ 

47,243 

47iZ4] 

11.170 

3(),491 

EXI IIBIT 11-4 

Total 

To~11! 
Cus totlial 

funds 

$ 58,413 

.'i8,4U 

47.243 

47,243 

11,170 

39,491 

Net l'osition - August 31 (Emling) 50,661 $ 50,661 
===== -- -==....,,== ======.-, F.<====== 
$ $ 
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T.E.A. REQUIRED SCHEDlJLES 



Last 10 Yem~ f.ndt<l 

A 111:,11sl '.! I 

2015 ond prior years 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 (Schuol ycur under audit) 

1000 TOTALS 

SANTA MARIA INDliPRNOENT SCHOOL DJ STRICT 

SCHl.:IJUl.l~OF DELTNQUENTTA Xl.:'S RECEIVABLE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDJ::1 >AUGUST 31. 2024 

(l) (2) 

Ta.xRatcs 

M aintcnnn<,'C Debt Service 

Various Various 

I . I 7CK.KJO 0.310000 

1.170000 0.310000 

1.170000 0.410000 

1.170000 0.410000 

1.068300 0.415000 

1.054700 0.415000 

1.051700 0.46S!KK) 

0.942900 0.485000 

0.8263(Kl 0.485000 

8000 Total TaliCs Rclim<lecl Under Section 2(i. l l 15, TaxCUlle 

76 

(3) 

Assessed/A ppr11isi:d 

V11luo for School 
T axl't1rp oscs 

$ 469,0R<i, I liR 

111,084,909 

51,799,024 

54,025,441 

57,993,462 

68,,197,150 

67,458,971 

70,541504 

I 55,562,434 

241,746,71~) 



EXHIBIT .1-1 

( 10) (20) (31) (;12) (40) (50) (99) 

l:Jcginning Cttrtent Entire Ending Taxc., Rcr undL'\I 

Hul,1nct: Year's M~inlcmmcc Debt Service Yeai'i; 1:3alanee Uuder ~cliuri 

9/1/2023 Totiil 1.cvy CollecliorL~ Colkclion$ Adjustments 8/31/2024 26.1115c 

$ 32,220 $ - $ 45R $ 235 $ " $ 31.527 

2,97J 1,919 50R 546 

2,953 1.822 638 493 

4,709 2,075 727 1,907 

4,.142 1/)71 766 1,605 

7,9'.JJ 4,463 1,756 1,780 

10,329 12,263 5,422 16,525 9,169 

13.421 44.17k 22,724 71 ,858 18,377 

31 ,76<i 62.507 36,689 110,600 43,170 

9'),354 3,181;238 725,69) 1, 102,170 (l ,JJ.5,400) 117,329 

$ 210,066 $ 3,181 ,21R $ 857;349 $ 1,171,Ci35 $ (1,136,417) $ 225,903 

$ 

T7 



SANTI\ MI\Rlt\ fNDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICl' 

SCI lliOITT .E OF REVENUES, EXPENDl'l'tllm5, t\ND CHt\NWS LN FUND flM./\NCF. 
BUDGl::r AND t\CrtJ/\L- CHILD NlJIRITION PROGRAM 

FOR THE YEt\Rf::NDED A UCTI JST 31, 202'1 

Oulu 

Co11I rol 

Codes 

JlliVENl JF.~: 

5700 Total Local and Intermediate Somces 
5800 Slate Prugroin Reveuues 
:,900 Federal l'rogram Revenues 

5020' Total Revenues 

EXPENOlTUHl·S; 

Cun·ent: 

0()15 Food Services 

6030 Total f~1enditurcs 

Iwo Ncl Clrnngu in 1:und Balaf)ces 

0100 hmd Balance - September 1 (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balunce-August :H (FJ1ding) 

$ 

$ 

Uu<lgcteJ i\11101!1\IS 

Ori~,inal C:inul 

;25,000 :,; 25,000 $ 

?.0,000 20,000 
666,091 666,09 1 

711,091 711 ,091 

711 ,091 71 1,091 

711.,091 711,091 

245,664 7.ilS,664 

2'15,664 $ 245,664 $ 

78 

Actual Amuw1ts 
( GAAf' Di\SIS) 

3,682 
22,407 

634,285 

660,37'1 

702,909 

702,909 

(112,53:S) 

245,664 

203,129 

.,, 

$ 

EXI HAIT J-2 

Variam:,i With 
Finni Rl~1gct 

Positive or 

(Nt:!l',1Liv1:) 

(2 1,318) 
2,407 

(3 1,1106) 

(50,717) 

8,182 

11,18:l 

(42.535) 

(42,535) 



EXHll.Hl .1-3 
SANTA MARJA INDEPENDENT SCll()()J.l>ISTRTCT 

SCI LEDUI ,1,; OF REVFNl JES, EXPENDlTURl.:.'S, A Nil Cl IA NOES 1N FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND AC.TUA I. - DEBT SERVICE fUND 

FOR Tl It•: Yl..iA R ENDED AUGUST '.l 1, 2024 
- -------------- · c-- --------------------

Data 

Control 

Co<ics 

REVENUJ.:.S: 
5700 Total T .ocal and lnte1mediule Souru:s 
5KOO State Program Rcvcnues 

5020 Total Revenues 
J ;Xl'ENDlTl TRES: 

Debt Service: 

0071 l'rindpol on I .ong-Term Liabilities 
0072 Interest on Long-Term Liabilities 
007,1 Bond Issuance Cost and Fees 

lntcrgovetn mental: 

0099 Other Intergovcmmcnlal Churgcs 

60.rn Tot.ul l.:)1pendit11res 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 

01 oo Fund Baluncc - Sllplcrnbet· I (Beginning) 

l 300 Adjustments and Restatements 

1000 Fund Balance - Augus t 31 (Ending) 

Hudgclcd Amo,u,l s 

Original Finni 

493,SUU $ '19'.'.\,500 $ 

A,;t,~11 Amounts 
(0/\Al' HASIS) 

1,204,197 $ 

___ 5_1_s.;_,o_oo ____ 5_1_s.c...o_o_o _____ _ 

$ 

1,00R,500 1,UU!!,500 

455,000 
460,438 

5,460 

87,602 

1.008,:'!00 

19.68~ 

19.684 $ 

79 

455,000 
460,43R 

5,460 

R7,602 

1,008,.500 

19,61\4 

19,684 $ 

1,204,197 

454,999 
460,438 

3,975 

87,602 

l,007,0 M 

197, 183 

l9,G!!4 

'.l20,94R 

537.815 $ 

Vorinncc With 
r.-imll Ut.Ji,,,et 

Positive or 
(Negative) 

710,697 
(S 15,00'2_)_ 

195,697 

1.485 

1,486 

l97,l ll3 

320,948 

518, 131 



SANTA MARIA lNl>hl'FNDF.NT SCHOOLDlSTRICT 

STATE COMPENSATORY lit>! JC/\ TTON A ND BILINGUAL EDUCATION l'ROGRJ\ M EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENl>l·:t> All<1lJST 31. 2024 

Section A; Com1>en~ntory lt'.ducation P1·ograms 

Al' l Did your district expend any state compensatory education program state allotment funds 
during the district's fiscal year? Ye.~ 

AP2 Does the dLslrieL have written policies and procedures fc.ir il1S stale compensatory education 
program? Yes 

AP3 Tot..11 st.ate allotment funds received for state compensatory education programs during, the 
district's fiscal year. $825,055 

A P4 Actual direct program expenditure~ for state compensatory education programs during the 
district's fiscal year. (P 10, 24,26,28,29,30) $940,721 

Sect'ion 8; Bilingual .t'fflu,:Qtion l'rograms 

A1'5 Did your district expend any bilingual education program state allotment funds during the 
district•~ Jiscal year? Yeis 

AP6 Does the di~trict have written policies and procedures for its bi.lingual education program? 

AJ'7 Total state allotment funds received for b.ilingual education programs during the district's 
fiscal year. 

APR Actual direct program expenditvrcs for bilingual education programs duri1,g the di~trict's 
fiscal year. (PIC 25) 

80 

Yes 

$120,997 

$881529 

EXll 113 IT J •4 
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

5402 Holly Rd. Suite 102 
Corpus Christi, Te~as 78411 

Office (361 )980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002 

Report on Internal Cont.rot Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Govemmerit Auditing Sta11dardv 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Santa Maria Independent School District 
P.O. Box 448 
Santa Maria, Texas 78592 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Santa Maria lndcpendent School District, as of and for the year ended August 3 t, 
2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Districf s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 27, 2025. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Santa Maria 
Independent School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis 
for designing audi t procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing au 
opinion on the effectiveness of Santa Maria lndependent School District' s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists whim the design or operation of a control docs not allow 
management or employees, in the no1mal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internaJ control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses ln· significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We 
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedLtle of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2024-001, that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Santa Maria Independent School 
District's financial statements arc free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to he 
reported w1der Government Auditing Standards. 

Santa Maria Independent School District's Response to Findings 

Santa Maria Independent School District's response to the findings identified in our audit and 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Santa Maria 
Independent School District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit and of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our lesting of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral pa1t of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standatds in considering the entity ' s internal control 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not .suitable for any other purpose. 

Raf{.,/' //4,.-uuut'°o/ 9'- c?a-l'll/J fZ-llf', ?. c~ 
Corpus Christi, Texas 
January 27, 2025 
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

5402 Holly Rd. Suite 102 
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411 

Office (361)980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MA.TOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Trustees 
Santa Maria Independent School District 
P.O. Box 448 
Santa Maria, Texas 78592 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion 011 Ellclt Mtzjor Federal Program 

We have audited Santa Maria Independent School District's compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMD Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Santa Maria Independent Schoo\ 
District's major federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2024. Santa Maria 
Independent School District's major federal programs a.re identified in the summary of 
aud1tor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, Santa Maria Independent School District complied, in all material respects, 
with the types of compliance requirements refetTed to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2024. 

Ba.ds for Opinion 011 Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordm1ce with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Stcmdards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulutions Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Co.vi Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of Santa Maria Independent School District and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating 
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal detem1ination of Santa Maria Independent 
School District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements refeJTed to above and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance 
with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or 
grant agreements applicable to Santa Maria Independent School District's federal 
programs. 

Autlitor's Responsibilities/or tlte A11dil o/Complia11ce 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, 
and express an opinion on Santa Maria Independent School District's compliance based on 
our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
,tccepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance 
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting mate1ial 
noncompliance resulting from ITaud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, fbrgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material ifthere is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 
it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance 
about Santa Maria Independent School District's compliance with the requirements of each 
major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance; we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perfonn audit procedures re~ponsivc to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Santa Maria 
Independent School District' s compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above and perfonning such other procedutes us we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 

• Obtain, an understanding of Santa Maria Independent School District's internal 
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order t<J design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to tesl and report on internal control 
over complim1cc in accordance with the Unifom1 Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Santa Maria Independent School 
District's intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those;: charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the pla1111ed scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies 
and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the 
audit. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance· 

A defldency in internal control over c:mnplianc:e exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course 
of perfom1ing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and conect, noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness h1 internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 
in internql control over compliance is a deficiency_, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance ·with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in inten1al control over compliance; 
yet importan,t enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies iu internal control over compliance that might 
be material weaknesses or signific~mt deficiencies in internal control over compliance. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as <leilned above. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
ofinternal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The p1.1rpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to desuribe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based 
on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report 1s not suitable for 
any other purpose . 

..€-/ tAt~.&., 9'- c::Z:-,,o.e¥ ;z:: a 
Corpus Christi, TX 
January 27, 2025 
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SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results 

1. Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

lnternal control over financial reporting: 

One or more material weaknesses identified? 

One or more significant deficiencies identified that 
are not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? 

2. Federal Awards 

[ntemal control over mrtjor programs: 

One or more material weaknesses identified? 

One or more significant deficiencies identified that 
arc not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be rcpo1ted 
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) !>art 200? 

Identification of major programs: 

Unmodified 

Yes X No 

_JL Yes _ None Reported 

_ ,- Yes X_ No 

Yes X No 

__ Yes _X __ None Reported 

Unmodified_ 

Yes _x_ No 

CFDA Number(s) 
I 0.553 

Name of Federal Pm_gram Qr CJuster: 

10.555 
10.559 
10.582 

Dollar threshold used to distiugulsh between 
type A and type B prograrns: 

Auditee qualified as low~risk auditee? 

86 

School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 
Summer Food Service Program for Children 
Fresh Frnit and Vegetable Program 

$750,000 

X Yes No 



SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024 

B. FinaJtcial Statement Findings 

Finding No. 2024-001 

Criteria: All transaction types occurring in the course of business should be timely and coded property in the 
general ledger. Preparation of year-end adjusting journal entries, reconciliations, rc:views and other general 
ledger year-end balancing should be completed in a timely manner to provide complete: and accurate financial 
reports. 

Condition: The district encountered numerous issues when the tax depa1tment incorrectly allocated property 
taxes due to miscalculated tax rates and homestead exemptions error. The-year end ledgers were not accurate 
and required adJusLmcnts. The bank reconciliations, rccoivables and payables also rcquirod adjustments. This 
resulted in additional time and effort on our part during the course of thti audit. 

Cause: The financial statements, schedules, and general ledgor were not prepartid on a timely ba!)is as a result 
of the issues encountered related to the allocation of taxes and the erroneous application of tax rates. 

Effect: Management assessments and financial decisions, and internal and external financial reporting may be 
inaccurate because of an improperly maintained general ledger. 

Recommendation: Management and staff should be instructed and tt·ained regarding the understanding of basic 
accounting rules & principles, along with prope.r internal control, and timely financial reporting. 

Management Response: The district will emphasize the need to balance all books btifore they are closed to 
confom1 to gtinerally accepted accounting prin<.:iples and comply with the Texas Education Agency's guidelines 
for financial reporting. The district will monitor budgets monthly Lu ensure excess expenditures eliminated a11d 
hudget ameodnients will be completed in advance when necessary. The Business Manager is the contact. 
person. 

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
NONE 
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NONE 

SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE 01,. PRIOR AlIDlT FINDINGS 

POR THP. YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31 , 2024 
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SANTAMARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024 

Management Response: The district will emphasize the need to balance all books before 
they are closed to conform to generally accepted accounting principles and comply with 
the Texas Education Agency's guidelines for financial reporting. The district will monitor 
budgets monthly to ensure excess expenditures eliminated and budget amendments will be 
completed in advance when necessary. 

The Business MaI1t.1ger is the conta.ct person. 

89 



SANTA MARlA TNDf.,PENOENT SCHOOLlllS'J'R(CT 

SCHFDIIUl Ol' EXPENDITURES OJ; FfiDERAl. AWARDS 

l'OR 'rl-lE YEAR ENDED AlJGUS'T 3 I, 2024 

()) 

Fl·UhRl\l ,CiRJ\NTOR/ 
P J\ SS-Tl-lROUUl l (il{A NI OR/ 
l'ROGRA Mor Cl ,USTER TITLE 

11.S. DEPA.llTMENT O 1" l:LHlC/\TION 

l'asscd Throuph Tclfil~ falu1:aliu11 A~.!l__SY. 
ESRA. Tilki 1, Purl A - lmnrnvine.13asic l'rnl'.rams 
ESEA. Tille I. !'rut C • Migrntorv Chilclrcn 
Title IV. Pt 13-21st Cent. Cornrnunilv l ,enrnin(( Cent. 
GEARUI' 
l::SEA. TH le V. Part TI.2 - Rural & I.ow Income l'rof~ 
T ille m. Purl A • EnJ2]ish L.ll1e.ual1!! Acauisit.ion 
P.SEA. Title rL l'ru1 A. Teacher J1rincio11J Trninin~ 
COVlD l9 - F.SSP.R ITT - School Eiuerg_i;ngy Rcli.of 

Toi.al Passed Thi'01I1!)1 Texas Education Ab,cncy 

TOTAL U.S . DJ!l'AIHMENT OF EDUCATION 

U.S . DEPA.ltrl'\1lliNT OF l.Ll::A.tfH ANlt Jll JMAN S ERVIC.ES 

l'ass1.xl Thrn11~h Ti,x.is J li,allh _;ll.}_d I luman Services Cornmis~ion 
COVID-19 Public Health Workforci.: Sunn lcrni,ntul Fu,I<ling Grant 

Total Passed Through lcxns Hcnl!h ,m<l I lu1mlll Service.~ Commission 

TOTAL U.S. J)RPA.JUMF.1'/T 017 IIFALTHAND HUMAN SF.RVJr.FB 

U.S. 1u,;i•AitT.MENT OF AGRICULTURE 

P1~~si=d ThroupJ1 IJ~ Te~~ Dcpm1mcnt ol' Ar,:icullurc 

*School l::lrcakfost l'rof!rnm 
* Nnlionnl Schnul Lu11d1 Progi-am - C<1sh Assistance 
*National School Lunch l'rog, - Non-CtL~h /\ssislillm: 

Tomi Assistm,L-c T.i,Linf:\ Nmnhc,r I 0.555 

* Non Cit~h A~sistunre - Sununer f-eedine:1'roPTarn 
*l'ri=sh l'rniL and Vcgatablc l'rol!]"am 

Total Child Nutrition Clusl er 

Ttil al P>llist:tl Thrnu!!)1 the Texas Department of Agric11lwrc 

TOTAL U.S . D.El'AlffM.J<.:Nl' O.F i\GRICIJLTllRI!: 

TOTAL EXPlw'lDITlllU.S 01•' Kl::n};t(Al , AWARDS 

•clustered l'rognin,~ 

(2) 

Fcdr.:ro.1 
Ass is tan cc - , 
Listing No. 

84.0I0A 
811.0l l 
84.2117 
!M.'.B4Il 
84.3581\ 
84.3651\ 
84.367A 
K4.4251> 
84.424 

93J7.3 

10.551 

10.555 
J0.555 

10.559 
10.587. 

See A ccompanying Notes to lhc Sch~<lulc nl'ExpendiLures of Federal Awurd~ 
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(3) 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

l,tl-6 IO IO 1011913 
24-615001031913 
24-52 !!7C?.30011<1 
241'334Al80025 
ZHi9600I0'.l I9I'.l 
211-67 1001031913 
24-694501031913 
24,5Z80(ll0:l I9I 3 
24-680101031913 

24-N lJ 50CK0UU501 -0?AI 

71402401 

71307.Wl 
7130230] 

EXHll31T K •I 

(4) 

Fcdcrnl 
h-.penditure~ 

$ 297.:\,f\l 
57.020 

4114.626 
85,977 
16.347 
V<ll 

:l:J.57I 
220.400 

I7JJI0 

1,214,741 

1,214,741 

40.154 

40,354 

40.354 

218.166 

374.858 
25.170 

400,028 

23.1'.10 
16,090 

657,434 

657,434 

6!i7,434 

$ 1,912.529 
- :::-:-'-====XI 



SANTA MARIA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED AUGUST 31t 2024 

Basis of Presentation: 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures offederal awards includes the federal grant activity of Santa 

Maria Independent School District. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 

requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some 
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of 

the basic financial statements. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such 

expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and 0MB 

Compliance Supplement, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 

reimbursement 

Indirect Cost Rate: 

The Uniform Guidance allows an organization to elect a 10% de minimus indirect cost rate. For the year 

ended August 31, 2024, the District did not elect to use this rate. 

Sub~recipients: 

During the year ended August 31, 202LI, the District had no sub-recipients. 

Federal Loans and Loan Guarantees: 

During the year ended August 31, 2024, the District had no outstanding federal loans payable or loan 

guarantees. 

Federally Funded Insurance: 

During the year ended August 31, 2024, the District had no federally funded insurance. 

Noncash awards: 

During the year ended August 31, 2024, the District received $25,170 as noncash-assistance under the 

National School Lunch Program. 

Reconciliation from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to Exhibit C•3: 

I otal Federal Award Expended $ 1,912,529 

TEA 99,304 

SMARS l 10,234 

ExhibilC-3 $ 2,122,067 
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SCHOOLS FIRST QUESTIONNL\JRF. 
EX1 lilllT 1...-1 

SANTA MJ\RlA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT Fiscal Year 2024 

s1:1 Wm; there an unmodified opinion in the Annual financial Report on the financial 
statements as a whole? Yes 

SF2 Were there any disclosures in the Annual Financial Report and/or other sources of 
information concerning nonpayment of any tem1s of any debt agreement at fiscal year- No 
end? 

SF3 Oid the school district make timely payments to the Teachers Retirement Syst<.,·rn (TRS), 
Texas Workforce Cornmis!'lion (TWC), Internal Revenue Service (lRS), and other Yes 
government agencies? (If payments wore not made or warrant hold not cleared within 30 
days of when due, then payments are NOT timely.) 

SF4 Was the school districl issued a warrant hold? (Even if the issue surrounding the initial 
w,mant hold was resolved and cleared within 10 days, answer is still YES.) No 

Sf5 Did the Annual Financial Repmt disclose any instances of material weaknesses in internal 
controls over financial reporting and compliance for local, state or federal funds and/or No 
substantial doubt about the distliet's ability to continue as a going concern? 

Sf6 Was there any disclosure in the Annual Financial Repm1 of material noncompliance for 
grants, contracts, and laws related to local, state, or fodcral funds? No 

SJ/7 Did the school district posl the required financial information 011 its website in accordance 
with Government Code, I .ocal Government Code, Texas Education Code, Texas Yes 
Administrative Code and other slah1tcs, laws and rules that were in effect at the school 
district's fiscal year end? 

SFS Did the school district's adrninistration and school board members discuss any changes 
and/or impact Lo local, state, and federal funding at a board meeting within l20 days Yes 
before the school district adopted its budget? 

SF9 Tota l accumulated accretion on CA.Rs included in government-wide financial statements 
al fiscal year end. 0 
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